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1

TRANSdRIP; OF PROCEEDINGS

2

PUBLIC WORKS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE

3

COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUl

4

MEETING MINUTES

5

FEBRUARY 14, 2001

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

7

Good morning, members.

I'd like to

8

call this Public Works and Transportation meeting to order on

9

this Valentine's Day, February 14th.

For the record, members

10

in attendance, we have vice-chair Dain Kane, committee member

11

Alan Arakawa.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

Good morning.

Councilmember and Committee Member

14

Robert Carroll, Committee Member Riki Hokama, Councilmember Jo

15

Anne Johnson, Committee Member Pat Kawano.

16

Excused today is Councilmember Wayne Nishiki and Charmaine

17

Tavares.

18

secretary Jo-Ann Sato, Corp Counsel Traci Fujita-Villarosa, and

19

Planning Member Mr. Clayton Yoshida, and Joe Alueta.

Good morning.

And also in attendance we have analyst Roy Hiraga and

20

Now, we will begin today with testimony.

We have

21

approximately five testifiers today.

Just for informational

22

purposes, I'd like to go over the ground rules with our

23

testifiers.

24

out there who would like to testify, please be sure to sign up

25

at the secretary's desk.

Please be sure, if there are any additional people

Testimony shall be limited to three

4
< ,

1

minutes.

2

your testimony, should you hit the three minute mark.

3

testimony is not completed, an additional three minutes will be

4

given to you after all others have been heard.

5

requested to state their name for the record and to indicate

6

who they're representing.

7

the meeting, please turn off all pagers and cellular phones, or

8

set them to the silent mode.

9

You will be granted an additional minute to conclude
If your

Testifiers are

And to minimize disturbances during

And also I'd like to mention we have from the Maui

10

News Valerie Monson.

So if there's no questions or concerns,

11

I'd like to begin with our testimony first.

12

up Gina Flammer, to be followed by Madelyn D'Enbeau.

13

information, after our testimony is finished, we will have a

14

PowerPoint presentation done for us by the Planning Committee,

15

which relates to the item on sign ordinances.
MS. FLAMMER:

16

Good morning.

I'd like to call
Just for

Good morning.

My name is Gina

17

Flammer, and I'm here today representing the Kula Community

18

Association.

19

pleased that the County Council is reviewing the proposed sign

20

ordinance.

21

many comments from residents concerned about the proliferation

22

of inappropriate signs.

23

be seen throughout the community.

24
25

I'd like to start off by saying that we're very

Our association's board of directors have received

The escalation of sign competition can

The Kula Community Association views the issue of
signage as very important to our community, and as such, has a

5

1

sign committee to address the specific sign issues, as well as

2

the proposed ordinance.

3

that this bill has specific regulations for agricultural and

4

rural districts.

5

materials and the prohibition of internally lit signs be

6

considered in these areas.

7

and/or internally lit signs as inappropriate for the Upcountry

8

region.

9

ordinance addresses quasi-governmental associations, which are

Our association appreciates the fact

We would ask that the use of natural

The association finds the plastic

The association is also pleased that the proposed

10

not mentioned in the current County Code.

11

as churches must presently apply for a variance, and under the

12

new -- under the current code new signs are not permitted.

13

With its clear guidelines, the passage of a new sign ordinance

14

would provide for appropriate signs and assist quasi-public

15

entities in replacing and erecting new signs.

16

association's sign committee will be meeting again in the near

17

future to further review this proposed ordinance.

18

we be allowed to comment on the bill and participate in future

19

discussions.

20

Organizations such

We ask that

Thank you very much for your time.

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you very much, Gina. Are there

21

any questions for our testifier this morning?

22

Councilman Kane.

23

The community

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

We have one,

What kind of time frame or what

24

kind of calendar do you folks have for your future discussions?

25

And the reason I bring that up is because if we were to pass

6

1

this out of committee today and have two readings in the

2

Council, I mean the ball would be rolling.

3

to the additional comments that your organization may have.

4

you have a calendar available that we could --

5

MS. FLAMMER:

So we look ~orward
Do

We could be working with any calendar

6

you have.

7

would ask is that you add a provision for rural and

8

agricultural districts that would include the use of natural

9

materials for signs and that prohibit internally lit or plastic

10
11
12
13

If you are going to pass it today, the only thing we

signs for the area.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
written testimony for that.
CHAIR MOLINA:

And we can refer to your

Thank you very much.

Okay, members, any other questions

14

for our testifier?

15

testimony on PWT number 68.

16

D'Enbeau, who will testify on items number PWT 2 and 7, to be

17

followed by Len Cappe, who will testify on PWT 68.

18

If not, thank you very much, Gina, for your

MS. DUENBEAU:

Next to testify we have Madelyn

Good morning.

My name is Madelyn

19

D'Enbeau, and I'm testifying this morning as the Chairman of

20

the Makawao Main Street Association.

21

for an hour or so from my job for working for Wayne Nishiki,

22

and I'm testifying on behalf of the organization.

23

word about Makawao Main Street Association.

24

it's a merchant association.

25

Main Street Association draws on merchants, residents, business

I've taken some time off

Just a quick

Some people think

This is not correct.

Makawao

7

1

owners, property owners, the entire community of Makawao.

2

we do have at least twice a year public meetings that are

3

advertised and open to all, and at these meetings we have

4

discussed both of the issues that are before you today,

5

specifically the toilet issue and the issue of the stoplight at

6

the intersection of Baldwin and Makawao Avenues.

7

And

As far as the toilet goes, we have for a number of

8

years now supported and urged a kiosk which would contain

9

toilets and an office for the Upcountry police officer.

We

10

felt that would be a good combination, because there is some

11

concern that toilets might be vandalized and so forth.

12

most likely location would be in the municipal parking lot, but

13

if there's other better locations the County can propose, of

14

course that would be fine too.

15

portable toilet solution that's being brought forward.

16

only one -- with a caveat, I should say, that we want this to

17

be definitely a temporary fix.

18

can kind of go on for a long time.

19

that this be seen as only a stop-gap measure, because I don't

20

have to describe the problems with portable toilets.

21

The

We don't oppose the temporary
The

You know how temporary fixes
And so we'd like to urge

The traffic light at the intersection, now, we've

22

had several years of discussions at community meetings, and the

23

consensus is that the feasibility of a four-way stop we would

24

like to see studied.

25

with that intersection, or maybe you haven't been up there in

For those of you who are not familiar

8

1

awhile, Makawao and Baldwin Avenues is a three-way stop.

The

2

hill coming up, coming up Baldwin Avenue, is not a stop sign.

3

Historically, I understand the reason for that was the

4

difficulty of making stops with different kinds of vehicles

5

coming up the hill like that.

6

don't know, but that's what I've been told.

7

everyone in the area is familiar with the area it works fine.

8

There is a problem now with visitors coming up who may not be

9

familiar with the concept of a three-way stop, and of course

10

you can't really put a sign there saying this is a three-way

11

stop without them not, you know, it doesn't quite work that

12

way.

13

probably be a good thing to look at.

Whether that's true or not I
So as long as

So that's why the feasibility of a four-way stop would

14

The traffic light, the consensus is definitely no.

15

And there's several reasons for that.

One is we had a lot of

16

little street and parking lots coming into Baldwin and Makawao

17

Avenue.

18

going toward Makawao, I mean toward Pukalani from the

19

intersection, you've got the library parking lot, you've got

20

the Liquor Shack, you've got the Rose Allen building, you've

21

got two residents there on the makai side of the road, and

22

you've got the municipal parking lots.

23

would be trying to get out onto Makawao Avenue.

24

other side you have businesses and also a little street which

25

comes down.

On Makawao Avenue, if you think about how it looks

So all of these people
And on the

9

1

MR. HlRAGA:

2

MS. D'ENBEAU:

Three minutes.
So the consensus is that when you're

3

stopping and proceeding toward a stop sign, you more tend to be

4

courteous to let people come in, because you don't have that

5

pressure, wow, it's green, I'm going.

6

forgot, I need to leave room for somebody coming out of this

7

place, and now it's too late.

8

going.

9

people to make eye contact.

And if it's red, I

So we have a certain etiquette

And I'm not saying it's perfect, but it does allow
Very small intersection, you can

10

make eye contact and you can see who's going to go next, and we

11

feel that it's workable.

12

In the long term, we'd like to see a bypass probably

13

below Makawao town, but we realize that's a long-term

14

solution.

15

and the community, according to the meetings that we've had.

16

Thank you very much.

17
18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay, thank you very much, Benni.

Any questions for our testifier?

19
20

So anyway, that's the position of the association

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Mr. Arakawa.
Thank you.

Good morning,

Benni.

21

MS. D'ENBEAU:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Good morning.
In most of this discussion,

23

we've had for a number of years already a couple of questions

24

as far as the portable restroom facility.

25

is the County parking lot.

I guess the proposal

Is there another area within

10

1

Makawao town that would be available and more beneficial?
MS. D'ENBEAU:

2
3

There isn't any other that I'm aware

of, any other County owned property right in the area.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

4

Even if it were, with some

5

of the merchants when we could arrange an area that they would

6

be willing to let us put a portable, that might work.

7

trying to -- we're trying to do this for the convenience of

8

people going into Makawao town, if we can find the most

9

convenient area.

I'm just

\

The parking lot is kind of out of the way of

10

the town itself and it's sort of on the outskirts.

11

can figure out, and if Main Street can figure out an area that

12

perhaps the merchants would be willing to work with the County.
MS. D'ENBEAU:

13

So if you

Well, we -- it's true the parking lot

14

is a little out of the way, which is a whole other issue.

But

15

anyway, the people now are usually told to go to the library,

16

which is right next to the parking lot,

17

quote-unquote public toilet.

18

fairly infrequent and, you know, they're not open some

19

mornings, so it's very inconvenient for the visitors

20

especially.

21

would be you'd need to find a place I guess where they can load

22

and unload the portable toilet.

23

couple of little empty spots on Baldwin Avenue where there

24

isn't, aren't any buildings.

25

toward Baldwin there next to

'cause it's the only

Of course, the library hours are

The problem I think in finding another location

I don't know.

There are a

The Barto property goes out
between Komoda's, well,

11
.'"

1

actually between the old meat market that's not being used now

2

and the fireplace store.

3

So, you know, there is some space there, and it's

4

possible that that would be, if the Barto family wanted to go

5

along with it.

6

this morning has to do with somebody accepting liability for

7

problems which I think they're saying would be the County.

8

there is that open space there, so that would be another

9

possibility.

10

But I think what the -- what the proposal was

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

But

The other thing would be

11

maybe a contract with one of the merchants if the facilities

12

has enough capacity to be able to do a public

13

MS. D'ENBEAU:

To my knowledge/ there aren't any

14

merchants that have anywhere near that kind of facility.

I

15

mean I'm thinking just off the top of my head.

16

Polli's only has probably just barely enough for their use.

17

They have one toilet for each, for men and women, I think.

18

not -- but there may, I mean I'm not closing the door on that

19

possibility, I just can't think of any.

20

is Maui's Child Toys and Books, I mean we have a little rickety

21

room in back with a toilet.

22

common situation/ sort of from a really old long ago toilet

23

that maybe the employees can use but you don't feel that

24

comfortable letting other people in because it isn't that well

25

done, you know.

You know, even

I'm

I mean my store l which

And I think that's kind of a

12

COUNCILMEMBE~ ARAKAWA:

1

2

No, I'm just searching right

now, because you're representing Makawao Main Street.

3

MS. D'ENBEAU:

Right.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

If we're going to try and

5

address a problem, the Chairman's suggestion that we use the

6

parking lot is a good suggestion.

7

convenient location then we would appreciate, and I'm sure

8

everyone would appreciate input on that, so that we could put

9

it in the right location.

10

a great idea.

11

to be done.

12

group.

13

But if there is a more

If there is none, the parking lot is

It's something that we've been proposing needs
We've heard it time and again from the Main Street

The other question I have is on the bypass.

When

14

Councilman Morrow was planning chair weJwere looking at a

15

bypass above Makawao town which was coming above the cemetary

16

from Piiholo Road, coming across right below the arena, and

17

then hooking up with the roadway right above Makawao town.

18

that something that you guys -- I was told not to use "you

19

guys" -- that your association could look at as a possibility?

20

MS. D'ENBEAU:

We could certainly look at all the

21

options that are presented.

22

future, of course.

23

24
25

Is

I mean, you know, that's in the

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

I've been told there is a

County road that rides above that so -COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman, point

13

1

of order.

The bypass is not on the agenda for today's

2

discussion, so I would ask that you consider not allowing that

3

question to be pursued.

4

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

Mr. Arakawa, if

5

you can address your remarks specifically to the issue on the

6

toilets and intersection.

7

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

8

MS. D'ENBEAU:

9

the bypass.

That's fine.

Well, since I did -- you mentioned

I just would like to answer, if I could,

10

Councilmember Arakawa's question, which is -- the answer is

11

certainly we would, the Main Street Association would very

12

seriously consider any options that are presented for a

13

bypass.

Thank you very much for the question.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Any more questions for

16

Benni?

Okay, thank you very much, Benni.

17

with the next testifier, I would like to mention Charmaine

18

Tavares is here, she got caught in traffic.

19

the Corp Counsel Mr. Howard Fukushima.

20

testifier is Len Cappe, who will be giving testimony on PWT 68,

21

to be followed by Charlie Levy, who will be testifying on PWT

22

67.
MR. CAPPE:

23

24

Council.

25

ordinance.

~efore

we continue

We have also from

Okay, our next

Chairman Molina, members of the

Thank you for letting me comment on the sign
My name is Len Cappe, and I'm a small business

14
1

owner here on Maui.

2

Department, and especially Joe Alueta, for a job well done.

3

This sign ordinance is really getting very close to what I

4

think is an acceptable format for sign codes.

5

believe the following should be considered.

6

the people of Maui County have a primary interest in

7

controlling the erection, location and maintenance of signs in

8

a manner designed to protect the public health."

9

weird.

Safety and morals?

However, I
Page 2, A, "That

That seems

I don't understand that.

To

10

promote public welfare.

11

agree with providing a method of effective advertising.

12

know, if you think about it, a sign is probably the most

13

effective method for a business to promote its name, its image,

14

its product, its logo.

15

in morals and safety and public health?

16

that.

17

replace A with "to control signage in a fair manner."

18

And then last, but not least l

I do
You

Why in the world would we want to drag
I don't understand

It seems like a funny twist on things.

We could maybe

C, "That the increased number and size of such

19

signs, coupled with the increased use of motor vehicles, make

20

it imperative that the public streets and highways be kept free

21

from signs which distract motorists' attention from driving and

22

which distract from signs promoting traffic safety."

23

there are no facts to back that up, either.

24

Maui County Police Department to see if there were any traffic

25

accidents they could relate to people distracted reading

Well,

I checked with the

15
1

signs.

The answer was a definitive no.

2

it up, that there are car accidents as a result of signage, I

3

don't see any reason to have it in there.

4

just taken out.

5

But I don't think it's a good basis as sort of a preamble to

6

the sign ordinance.
I'm sorry, what item number is

that?
MR. CAPPE:

9

10

I think it should be

don't think it affects the rest of this.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

8

I

So if they can't back

I apologize, that would be C.

This is

page 2C.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

MR. CAPPE:

Thank you.

Then D, "That the indiscriminate

13

erection, location, illumination, coloring and size of signs

14

constitute a significant contributing factor in increasing the

15

number of traffic accidents on the public streets and

16

highways."

17

construction, erection and maintenance of large signs suspended

18

from, or placed on top of buildings, walls or other structures,

19

constitutes a direct danger to pedestrian traffic below such

20

signs, especially during periods when winds of high velocity

21

are prevalent."

22

The problem is I don't think anywhere in here you'd find bolt

23

sizes or gauges of steel requirements, so I'm not sure it

24

relates to anything that I could find.

25

true, maybe Jon can point out where there's a connection here,

Again, the same problem.

And then E, "That the

I couldn't -- I agree with the intent there.

Now maybe that's not

16
:~l

1

but I don't find a connection between this.

2

MR. HlRAGA:

3

CaAIR MOLINA:

4

Three minutes.
Okay, one minute to wrap up,

Mr. Cappe.
MR. CAPPE:

5

Okay, that was E.

Page four, no, excuse

6

me, page six, "'Window sign' means a sign that is placed on the

7

outside of a window or inside within three feet of a window

8

which is visible from a public right-of-way."

9

later on, if we could go someplace else in here, but I've only

What it says

10

got a minute, it's going to say that basically window signs are

11

not legal within -- on a window or within three feet of a

12

window.

13

very vague the way it's written.

14

is a sign that is inside of a shop three feet one inch from a

15

window would be considered legal, and somehow we should just

16

say it plain as day.

17

confusing, specifically at the end where it says, "which is

18

visible from a public right-of-way."

19

the connection where it's further on in here, I don't think

20

that's clear, and I think we should just clarify that.

21

But we should just say it that way, because this is
So clearly I think the intent

Because I think this is a little bit

Page 8, promotional signs.

If you read this and make

That's in the middle.

22

One per business establishment.

Six times per year limit.

23

It's requiring a permit.

24

huge abuse of promotional signs at the moment.

25

ambiguity in the current sign ordinance about promotional

I don't believe that there's really a
There is major

17
1

signs, and it may be contributing partly to the problem that we

2

have with promotional signs in Maui County.

3

it's clear as can bel because it hasn't been clear before.

4

they're saying exactly what it can be, six times a year, there

5

are some square footage attachments to it.

6

great.

7

should at least try this out on a no fee, no permit basis.

8

don't think that's fair to businesses, I don't think that

9

that's something we should do right away.

10

For the first time
Now

I think that's

I think before we require permits and fees I think we
I

I also believe eight

square feet is too small.

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

I'm sorry, Mr. Cappe.

Excuse me,

12

Mr. Cappe.

I'm sorry to have to cut you off now, but I will

13

give you an additional three minutes if you would like to

14

conclude your testimony after we're finished testimony from all

15

of our other testifiers.

16

MR. CAPPE:

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

18

That would be great.
In the meantime, Members, do you have

any questions for Mr. Cappe?

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane?
Yes.

Yeah, just one question.

20

Would you be able to provide us with your suggestions in

21

writing so that we could -- I guess it would be easier for us

22

to try to implement it in a timely fashion?

23

MR. CAPPE:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

Chairman.

No problem.
Thank you.

Thank you, Mr.

18

1

CHAIR MOLINA: . Any other questions from the

2

members?

3

have Charlie Levy to testify on PWT 67 and also PWT 2, to be

4

followed by Susan Guille.

5

Guille, will be testifying on PWT 68.

6

Okay, thank you very much, Mr. Cappe.

MR. LEVY:

Please forgive me if I mispronounce

Good morning.

Good morning, Charlie.
I'm Charlie Levy, I am a

7

resident of Pukalani and I work in Makawao.

8

minutes on each issue that I'm to testify about?

9

10

CHAIR MOLINA:
MR. LEVY:

Okay, next we

May I have three

Yes, sir.

Okay, let's start with the toilet issue.

11

I definitely mean the toilet to be lightweight.

12

that originally proposed it.

13

Enriques, and I meant it to be a do it now and evaluate it and

14

take care of the consequences later.

15

Pacific Portables' owner to do an evaluation, and Mr. Komoda,

16

and we all three came up with the same spot within six feet.

17

Basically, it's two Portapotties, 320 a month, now it's 330,

18

and this issue has been floating for nine months, and it's

19

floundering, really.

20

happen within a week.

21

I was the one

I communicated with John

I went out and I got

And basically we can do it now, it can

My original intent was to go around collecting money

22

from the various businesses, donations, commitments of $20 to

23

$30 a month.

24

we could do it through the County and that, you know, is taking

25

more time than I thought.

And we got sidetracked because Mr. Enriques said

As far as a better location, if we

19

1

find it, fine.

They'll just go in there with a forklift.

2

Basically, I think you've got a map that I drew, a layout of

3

the parking lot.

4

month from Pacific Portables.

5

three quotes, and one was lower, but I did not follow up on

6

it.

7

what he's doing. They're very nice units.

8

not quite, the quality as the one in Polli's that has running

9

water.

We picked a spot, he can drop them in, 330 a
And let me interject, I did get

Pacific Portables, his name is Howard, he seems to know
They're the same as,

So if we want to move it we just get, he'll just get

10

his -- move, you know, however he moves portables, he'll move

11

to it wherever we want at a later time.

12

So basically I'm urging that we do it quickly.

13

Everybody knows that it needs to be done, nobody is opposed to

14

it.

15

nothing to yes, double, you know.

16

manager said, "I'll do anything to get the tourists off our

17

backs.

18

stop saying no, we haven't got a bathroom."

19

can do it now, we can move it later.

20

You know, I donUt know if this is legal to not go with the

21

lowest bid, but it would -- the lowest bidder did not engender

22

my feelings that he knew that much about what was going on.

People are willing to commit varying amounts of money from
What I want, you know, one

To be able to say no, we haven't got a bathroom, to

2.3

MR. HIRRAGA:

24

MR. LEVY:

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

So that's it.

We

We should do it fast.

Three minutes.

Howard from Pacific Portables did.
One minute to wrap up, Charlie.

20
1

MR. LEVY:

And that's it.

The spot we picked is a

2

little bit public and a little bit hidden from view.

3

west of the disabled persons' parking in the parking lot, and

4

that's it.

5

and we could worry about the future later.

6

a permanent kiosk or moving them to a better location.

7

suggest we sort of move quickly.

8

of money.

It takes up one spot, no investment by the County,

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

It's just

We can worry about
But I

We're not dealing with a lot

Okay, thank you, Charlie.

Members,

10

Mr. Levy did make a request for an additional three minutes on

11

the second item he had planned.

12

that?

13

question from Councilman Kane.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

Is there any objections to

In the meantime, for this first item we have a

I guess one of the concerns I

15

have -- thank you for being here, I appreciate your comments.

16

lim sorry.

17

a statement of do it now and we will worry about the

18

consequences later, for me as a decision maker and being held

19

accountable for my actions as a decision maker, that can be a

20

little scary to just take that attitude.

21

you understand that the function of my job is not to just go

22

for the result and then worry about the consequences later,

23

because if I took that mentality in all of the decisions I've

24

made we'd have some serious chaos.

25

So I just wanted to share that with you.

I guess one of the concerns I have is when you make

So I would hope that

That's a real big problem.
Not a question, but

21
;-: -

1

more of a comment.
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: J:,

So I W~~ld

hbpe

that you would appreciate
I
I

2
3

that it is here before us, we are looking at it.
And I think all of us -- and I won't speak' for

4

everybody else, but I recognize the importance of wha~ the

5

request is, so we will be looking at it really good.

6

just like to share that with you.

7

MR. LEVY:

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

But I'd

I'm sorry.
No, don't apologize.

But I

hear what you're saying, but I hope you can hear where we're

10

at, because it's something that if something is negative as a

11

consequence results from this action, then who will

12

accountable for that?

13

of my colleagues who support it will be facing the firing line,

14

so to speak.

15

b~

held

Well, itis going to be me and the rest

So thank you.

MR. LEVY:

I understand.

And we have given

16

vandalism and such issues due thought, and all three of us

17

independently -- I did a sort of a double blind thing asking

18

Mr. Komoda and Howard of Pacific Portables to pick a spot.

19

all ended up with the same two portables in the same location.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I understand that.

21

wanted to share with you my feedback.

22

Mr. Chairman.

23

24

CHAIR MOLINA:
on this issue for Charlie?

Thank you.

Thanks, Charlie.
Mr. Arakawa.

We

I just
Thank you,

Any other questions
,
I

I

25

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Your commitment, if:we were

22
~~~~~~~" ~:,;".,.
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§.hd fhe County were to permit

1

to get the location

2

it, my understanding is the merchants, you will be able to get

3

the merchants to pay the monthly bills for this?

4

MR. LEVY:

I am trying, I'm in the process of

5

trying.

I went out yesterday for the first time, because I had

6

sort of given up on this issue, and I vacillated back and

7

forth.

8

that the County foot the bill in a straightforward way.

9

don't know if this is easy or difficult.

I can continue to try, but personally I would recommend
I

I accept your

10

suggestions on how to proceed.

You know, I'm stuck at this

11

point.

12

Five or eight stores I got 30 percent sure, and another 30

13

percent no, and another 30 percent is, "I'll have to ask the

14

manager or the owner."

Yesterday I started out on the first pass-through.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

16

MR. LEVY:

Because

It would be a slight pain in the butt for

17

me to have to, you know, get the checks every month and dealing

18

with Howard.

19
20

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Well, then in process, as

long as we're doing this, we have to put it in the budget.

21

MR. LEVY:

22

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Pardon?
We have to put it in the

23

budget process, and the next budget will come out July 1st.

24

it will be awhile.

25

administration to be willing to expend that fund, and all we

The other thing is we have to get

So

23

1

can do is put it in ther~~
MR. LEVY:

2

W~ 6~h't clemandthe expenditure.

I guess then I recognize we do it

3

informally, that I proceed with as a civic duty trying to

4

organize a voluntary payment thing until the County takes

5

over.

6

way.

7

insurance, and his statement was that if Mike Molina told him

8

over the phone that the County would accept insurance liability

9

for total wrecking of a portable by vandalism, the County would

Howard of Pacific portables is willing to work that
He's also considered the informality issue vis-a-vis

10

take that.

But small stuff he would take care of, that's part

11

of the 330 a month. I mean we did

that was his suggestion.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Thank you very much, we'll

13

have the discussion in a little bit.

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay, any further questions for

15

Mr. Levy on this issue with regards to portable toilets in

16

Makawao?

17

and begin your testimony on item number two with regards to

18

traffic.

19

Hearing none, okay, Mr. Levy, if you want to go ahead

MR. LEVY:

Okay.

My understanding from Mr. Enriques

20

about a year, almost a year ago was that there was a four-way

21

stop sign, changing the three-way stop sign to a four-way stop

22

sign was scheduled for a test.

23

now is no, it's not.

24

this is a very strong statement, and I'm not making it lightly,

25

a traffic light could kill the economy of the town.

And the impression I'm getting

The first thing I want to say is that

The nature

24

£~~ri.

1

of the town is a walking

2

Down To Earth, where I sort of guide people out of the parking

3

lot, sending them backwards through two lanes of traffic, we

4

see the effect of jaywalking and people walking and tourists

5

walking and asking "Where is that?"

6

make it

7

jaywalking is encouraged.

At

And my own mission is to

keep it a walking town.
A traffic light works, it increases traffic by --

8

you have a line of cars at a red light, it turns green, the

9

first few take a little time to get up to speed, the others all

10

go through at 20 miles an hour or maybe 30, as down on Dairy

11

Road.

12

Right now if you see somebody or something in a store you can

13

stop.

14

miles an hour might increase the traffic flow, and it stands a

15

very good chance of really killing the town, killing the

16

economy and the spirit of the town.

17

the traffic light.

18

traffic going through town promotes the economy.

19

And I have one more point.

No visibility for the merchants, no chance of stopping.

30, 20 miles an hour, 10 or 15 cars going through at 20

So I am definitely against

I am also against the bypass because the

I forget that point.

So

20

as far as I'm concerned, we should just go forward with a test

21

if it needs to be tested.

22

for testing a four-way stop.

23

waving cars on and stuff like that, and I see the business and

24

there is much confusion with the three-way stop sign.

25

we've gotten rid of the three-way stop sign and made a fourth

I don't know if there is a procedure
Oh, as sort of -- I'm always

So now

25

2

that.

3

be liked because the uphill traffic, especially the tourists.

4

A tourist does not know he does not have a stop there and

5

there's ambiguity, and then the people going down wait on the

6

ambiguity.

7

a computer programmer and engineer, I understand traffic, and

8

also from directing traffic at Down To Earth.

And it's my own guess that the four-way stop sign will

9

And it's really my guess, I'm a computer --

MR. HIRAGA:

10
11

i

\i-ery well.

Everybody likes

at Kokomo

g

and that

s~i~:6. ~~~~~t:ed

1

Three minutes.

CHAIR MOLINA:
up, Charlie.

12

I was

Three minutes.

One minute to wrap

SorrYI continue,

MR. LEVY:

It's my estimate that the four-way stop

13

sign will be very well liked and will enhance, you know,

14

reasonable traffic flow at a stop and go pace, which is good

15

for the economy.

16

going through at 20 miles an hour, no chance of stopping.

17

That's it.

18

Stop and go is really better than 15 cars

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank very much, Charlie.

Any

19

questions for Charlie on this issue with regards to traffic in

20

Makawao town?

21

your testimony.

22

testifying on PWT 68, to be followed by Jocelyn Perreira, who

23

will be testifying on PWT 2 and 67.

24
25

Hearing none, thank you very much, Charlie, for
Next we have Susan Guille, who will be

MS. GUILLE:

Good morning.

Good morning, Susan ..
Good morning committee

Chair Molina and Maui County Council members.

My name is Susan

26
1

Guille and I'm here testi~YJ.hgtbd.aY not about horses but the

2

sign ordinance.

3

make a few comments about the sign ordinance.

4

back through my files on the sign ordinance I realized that

5

five years ago we as sign makers, a group of us had banded

6

together along with Joe Alueta from the Planning Department to

7

try and start working on the issue of the sign ordinance,

8

because it is very ambiguous.

9

had passed and a lot of energy has gone into this document, and

I'm from Volcano Signs, and I just wanted to
As I was looking

And I realize that five years

10

I think for the most part it's a very good document.

11

the Planning Department, and especially Joe Alueta, should be

12

congratulated on the amount of time and effort they have put

13

into it.

14

concerns at the workshops as small business owners, sign

15

owners, realtors, et cetera, and they took those considerations

16

into account in the sign ordinance.

17

I think

And there were workshops and they listened to our

I think there's just a couple of things I would like

18

to comment on.

Number one, I happen to agree with Mr. Cappe on

19

the purpose and intent is a little dramatic I think for a sign

20

ordinance.

21

about that, I'm not sure, but I think it's a little dramatic.

22

One of the other issues that I also agree with is the issue of

23

the promotional signs, banners.

24

charge will be made and it must be permitted.

25

I have yet to, you know, see if that process is going to work.

I'm sure maybe Corp Counsel had something to say

It's proposed in there that a
The permitting,

27
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pto6€§s right

1

I think that the permit

2

category Band C signs, is quite a lengthy process, so

3

hopefully the Planning Department can streamline that.

4

now for other signs,

But the issue I have is with charging, and

5

particularly for non-profits and schools, because non-profits

6

and schools will maybe do one fundraiser a year and they put

7

their banner up for that event, and they're trying to raise

8

funds.

9

should definitely be considered for not doing that.

So putting a charge for non-profits for banners I think
For

10

businesses it's also I think going to be a hardship as well,

11

because promotional signs are for sales, you know, trying to

12

promote your business, so why add another hardship?

13

understand a permit fee on the other category signs, because

14

there's much more involved in the process.

15

comment.

16

I can

So that's one

The other thing is I do agree with Gina Flammer's

17

testimony on the rural and agricultural criteria.

18

that plastic and illuminators should not be allowed in those

19

areas.

20

eye and goes along with the feeling of the community.

21

think that was a good point that she brought up to

22

specify that and not allow those types of signs in those

23

areas.

24

25

I do believe

I think natural materials is much more pleasing to the
So I
and maybe

One other area that I think needs to be changed is,
once again, in the banner division.

They're allowing

28

a 25 teSt ~~tback

1

businesses with just

from the road a banner

2

of size 8 square feet, which is a two foot by four foot

3

banner.

4

actually, I should go back on that -- they're actually not

5

saying.

That is a very, very small banner.

They're--

6

MR. HlRAGA:

Three minutes.

7

MS. GUILLE:

How much you're set back from the

8

street, it really has to do with the frontage.
CHAIR MOLINA:

9

MS. GUILLE:

10

One minute to wrap up, Susan.
And if you're set back away from the

11

street and you have a small frontage a 2-by-4 banner will not

12

get the job done.

13

on that particular issue.

14

I think that square footage should be raised

Other than that, I think the document is really

15

good.

16

think it should be scaled back any more.

17

smaller signs than we've been allowing.

18

aesthetically it will be good for Maui, and as a member of the

19

community I'd like to see things be aesthetically pleasing as

20

well as try to earn a living.

21

time.
CHAIR MOLINA:

22
23
24

25

I think it allows a minimum for businesses.

Susan?

I don't

It actually allows
So I think

So thank you very much for your

Thank you, Susan.

Any questions for

Jo Anne.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes. I'm not an o{ficial

member of the committee, but thanks, Susan, for coming.

I know

29

you are

1

that on the section where

2

with regard to non-profits has always been a problem.

3

also believe that when you are -- even in some instances where

4

you are having an event. and you do have to put up a banner,

5

that any kind of fee in that regard for a non-profit, and

6

perhaps even the length of time is a problem, do you see that

7

as a problem when you're spending let's say maybe like $300 or

8

$400 on a banner and then you have it up for only seven days?

9

MS. GUILLE:

talking about the banners
Do you

Yes, I agree with no fees for

10

non-profits.

11

already a burden, because most non-profits function on

12

volunteerism, which means someone has to come down to the

13

County and pull a permit.

14

because there's a time element there.

15

about the money because you're defeating the purpose of what

16

that banner is going up for, and that's to raise funds for a

17

good cause.

18

I really think that having to pull a permit is

So I feel strongly about that,
But I also feel strongly

As far as time limit goes, the sign ordinance does

19

allow for 14 days maximum.

The wording is a little bit

20

strange, but it does allow for 14 days maximum.

21

realistically that's probably a good period of time.

22

put something up 14 days before an event, that's probably

23

pretty good coverage for the community, you know.

24

that's fair, I think that's fair in terms of time.

25

think it's good to have a banner up for a month, because after

I think that
If you

So I think
I don't

30

1

awhile people don't see it and they forget about the event

2

anyway.

3

it, personally.

So I think two weeks might be a really good impact on

4
5

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Thanks so

much, Sue.
CHAIR MOLINA:

6

7

Okay, great.

Any further questions for Susan?

If

not, thank you very much, Susan.

8

MS. GUILLE:

9

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay, thank you.
Before we begin with our final

10

testifier, I'd like to also mention that in the midst, to give

11

information to our members, we have Deputy Police Chief Keku

12

Akana, and also our Public Works Director Mr. David Goode.

13

Good morning, Jocelyn.

14

testifying on items 2 and 67.

15

opportunity for three minutes on each item.

16

receptive to that?
MS. PERREIRA:

17

18

Before you begin, Jocelyn will be
Jocelyn, I did grant Mr. Levy an

Three on each item?

Would you be

Absolutely.

Good morning.

19

MR. MOLINA:

20

MS. PERREIRA:

Okay.
Not a problem. Chairman Molina,

21

Council members.

I'm here today to speak to you on a couple of

22

items.

23

from public meetings, what the people of Makawao have actually

24

said that some of their concerns were.

25

see checked is the item that was completed from the request

I'm just passing out to you right now results of input

So the item that you
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1

that had been submitted through the former Councilmember that

2

represented the area.

3

I would also like to state that we as a Main street,

4

Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center did a business, retention

5

and expansion survey project with Makawao and have -- and that

6

was completed just in October.

7

additional information, like trash pickup that is important.

8

And as to the bypass road that Mr. Arakawa referred to, I know

9

it's not on the agenda, but the Main. Street Association did

And that revealed some

10

look into that.

11

former Councilmember Tom Morrow looked, we looked below at the

12

connection with Kee Road, and where you would come off by the

13

cemetery.

14

discuss that.

15

And instead of taking, looking upward where

So at some other point more appropriate we can

Anyway, relative to the traffic light intersection,

16

we will take that first.

There has been a real resistance from

17

a lot of the people Upcountry to not have a traffic light in

18

that particular area.

19

small town without a traffic light, and something that really

20

adds to the flavor and charm.

21

it would have on pedestrians once they've got the green light,

22

and people would just rush by.

23

businesses that are in close proximity, especially toward the

24

traffic light, because people would not be able to get in and

25

out of their driveways.

One, because it is, it would be the

And also because of the impact

And the dramatic impact on the

32
1

So the Main Street Association, after taking the

2

issue and trying to work in committee as we have a process and

3

then coming to the BOqrd, had decided that we really ought to

4

have a test on a four-way as opposed to going straight to a

5

traffic light.

6

stop light, because that way it would give -- Komoda's, I

7

believe, are the ones that are most impacted.

8

Calvin would have loved to be here this morning, but the bakery

9

business made it impossible for him to get away.

Let's see what happens if we try a four-way

And of course

Then we can

10

take a look at some of the impacts wherein we conduct that

11

trial of a four-way stop.

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you, Jocelyn.

Questions for

13

the testifier with regards to the traffic situation in

14

Makawao?

15

testimony, this time I assume for item PWT 67.

Okay, if not, Jocelyn can go ahead and continue your

MS. PERREIRA:

16

The restroom issue is not a new

17

issue, it's an issue like in all towns that repeatedly comes

18

up.

19

the Barto development and so on and so forth, intense scrutiny

20

by the community was involved in where certain particular

21

things should be located in the public interest.

22

that piece of property that is next to what used to be the

23

Liquor Shack and Deli, I think you're most familiar with that.

24

And the library that has been kind of pinpointed as a really

25

it's kind of a small piece of property, so it's too small to

But as far back as early 1991 when we were dealing with

And there is

33
1

build a building unless they sell it to the current owner,

2

which is Haole of that Liquor Shack area, to try to do a police

3

kiosk and a public restroom, that that would be a good

4

proximity.

5

Mr. Levy had come and talked to us, and the reason

6

why there was a request for interim, an interim solution was

7

because when we had sought out former Councilmember Enriques it

8

was his suggestion at a public meeting that he would put into

9

the budget for the County to put as a temporary measure public

10

restrooms, public toilets, until such time that they could

11

construct a permanent public restroom.

12

the temporary solution came into being.

13

went with Mr. Levy to see where might be an appropriate place

14

for a temporary solution.

15

we have a concurrence from Mr. Kane that we do like to see a

16

permanent solution rather than a Band-Aid effect.

17

because this town is so popular, it is traveled by many, many

18

visitors and residents and so on and so forth.

19

continually be a hot spot, a popular spot, and there are no

20

public restrooms, they are in dire need of public restrooms.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

And that's how I think
Thereby Calvin Shibuya

But from a Main Street perspective

Thank you, Jocelyn.

Especially

It is going to

Any questions

22

for our testifier this morning from our Members?

23

you very much.

If not, thank

24

MS. PERREIRA:

Thank you very much.

25

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay, I believe this concludes our
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1

testimony today.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

2
3

who asked to come back, I believe, no?

4
5

Mr. Chair, we have a gentleman

CHAIR MOLINA:

Oh, yes, I'm sorry, Mr. Cappe, you

have three additional minutes to conclude your testimony.

6

MR. CAPPE:

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

7

to continue, page 8, promotional.

8

page.

9

year limit.

Just

That's in the middle of the

We have one per business establishment.

Six times per

And I was suggesting no fee, no permit on that.

10

If there was, I hate to even suggest a compromise, but if we

11

were to consider a compromise on that, possibly what we could

12

consider is something to the effect of maybe allowing four

13

promotions per year, which I think would cover a lot of

14

businesses, with no fee, no permit, and then beyond perhaps

15

four promotions then requiring permits and fees for two

16

additional promotions, with a limit of six per year per

17

business.

18

could compromise there.

19

So just as a sort of suggestion as something we

Then further down the page we have information.

20

Information, which really refers back to the window signs that

21

I had mentioned earlier.

22

really signs that are right in your window.

23

of businesses use those open signs

24

That would be an informational type of sign.

25

businesses, this would probably be applicable to a lot of neon

So in other words, information is

l

For example, a lot

those neon open signs.
A lot of
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1

signs in general that people do use in business.

2

we're showing four square feet now.

3

Right here

Just to give you an idea, a four square foot

4

informational sign is about equal to those open signs, what you

5

typically see that are about so big (indicating).

6

one day, it's about exactly four square feet.

7

this says that a business is allowed to say lIopenll and nothing

8

else in their windows, and I think that's really quite

9

restrictive there.

I measured

Essentially,

I would like to see that increased to

10

something to the effect of maybe 18 square feet of window

11

informational type of signage, so you can say something beyond

12

just lIopen.1I

13

within a certain reasonable quantity that would be fine.

14

again, it says no permit.

15

well.

16

I don't find neon signs that offensive.

I think
And

I think that should be continued as

Then page 19, there is a time limit on the permit, a

17

time limit on sign permits right at the top of page 19, and

18

that is 90 days.

19

where we went to the County, we proposed a sign sort of plan

20

for the entire building, something that everything is uniform,

21

really nice looking, but we didn't get tenants for certain

22

spaces in the building for about two years.

23

limit should be increased to something to the effect of two

24

years, and in some instances that would be really a fair

25

thing.

Now, in some instances

I have a building

I think this time

Especially if you go back and look at, for example, the

36

1

permit process which, for example, starts on page 15.

2

we go over to page 17, number 3, in the middle of that you are

3

going to see that there'S a 60 day waiting period for a person

4

in the process of an application.

5

day period of time --

6

MR. HIRAGA:

7

MR. CAPPE:

8

permit.

9

Then in item 4 there'S a 45

Three minutes.
-- Waiting for the County to allow a

And-CHAIR MOLINA:

10

But if

MR. CAPPE:

Mr. Cappe, would you please wrap up.

To just permit a sign then you're going

11

to tell the business owner that he has a short period of time

12

to actually design, put out the bid, deal with the sign.

13

think we should be generous.

14

trouble, got the permit, let's give him a reasonably fair

15

amount of time.

16

the instance of a building where, you know, it may not even

17

have the tenant yet, you've provided the County with a sign

18

plan.

19

is something that should be allowed there.

20

really wraps everything up.

22

questions for Mr. Cappe?

25

In

I think those are the instances where a long time frame

CHAIR MOLINA:

24

If the person went to all this

I think two years, or something like that.

21

23

I

And I think that

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Cappe.

Any further

Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Again, just to reiterate, are

you willing to provide your suggestions in writing for us?
MR. CAPPE:

Oh, yes, definitely I will.
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COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

1

2

that way when we look at

this we can have that?

3

MR. CAPPE:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5

MR. CAPPE:

6

And

Oh, yes, I will.
Appreciate it, thank you.

Yeah, that would be great.

No problem

at all, I will do that.
CHAIR MOLINA:

7

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

8

questions?

Thank you, Mr. Cappe.

9

concludes our testimony for this morning.

Any other

Okay, I do believe this
We will be dealing

excuse me, item number 68 on the

10

first with item number 67

11

sign ordinance.

12

about a 15 to 20 minute PowerPoint presentation, and I'd like

13

you to refrain from asking questions of the Members from the

14

Planning Committee until after the presentation.

15

meantime, we will take about a 10 minute recess to set up for

16

our PowerPoint presentation.

I'd like to let the Members know we will have

17

RECESS:

18

RECONVENE:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20
21

In the

9:50 a.m.
10:04 a.m.
From the Planning Department, Mr. Joe

Alueta to do a PowerPoint presentation on the sign ordinance.
MR. ALUETA:

Good morning, Members.

22

short PowerPoint slides.

23

introduction on signs, kind of a Signs 101.

24

clear on the definitions.

25

sign, a lightweight fabric material.

I'll have three

This first one is just more of an
Just so we can get

This is what we call a banner as a
I guess I don't really
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1

need to read it, but we should pretty much all be familiar with

2

a banner.

3

they're using a fabric as a sign.

4

project sign.

5

permit has been issued to notify the public of what's being

6

built, who's building it, and general information like that.

7

This is an awning sign.

8

material that is attached to a structure over the entrance or

9

door or service area of a building.

10

This is a Sig Zane sign down on Market Street, and
This is a construction

These are allowed for when an active building

It's basically normally a fabric

If you are familiar with

this building down in Kahului, these are samples of awnings.

11

Directional signs, these are primarily to guide

12

vehicles and pedestrians, and they should not have -- and

13

they're not allowed to have logos or commercial messages.

14

is for a drive-thru.

15

a sign that's internally illuminated.

16

it, it's coming from an internal source.

17

down on Market Street that is a sample of one indirectly

18

illuminated.

19

the bottom left-hand corner is your light source that shines

20

onto it.

21

government flags are not regulated, so they would not count as

22.

one.

23

Basically it's any sign that's attached to a wall or building.

24

First Hawaiian Bank.

25

This

A directly illuminated sign is basically
A light is not shined on
And this is a sign

Another store down in Kahului.

As you can see on

These are wind signs, so government signs or

We have Kaahumanu Center.

Rooftop signs.

A sample of a wall sign.

Our main concern with rooftop signs
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1

is that they do not extend beyond the highest point of any

2

roof.

A good example is Star Market.

Promotional signs, as

3 .you've heard some testimony today, will be limited in
4

duration.

We normally would have said it was limited to

5

banners, but it is not.

6

window painted sign as a temporary promotional sign or any

7

other sign.

8

see them, they're allowed say within a shopping center.

9

they're not visible from a public right-of-way or adjacent

It can be so that you can have like a

Portable signs are generally prohibited.

You do
And if

10

property, then they would be allowed.

11

not permitted along the edge of the property where it's

12

visible.

13

can see, a minimum height requirement, as when it's passing

14

over a walkway.

15

you have many hanging signs there.

16

But in general, they're

Hanging signs, make a certain size along with, as you

A good example is right down on Market Street

Projecting sign, where it comes out and is supported

17

away from the building.

One of the -- we tried to clarify, in

18

modifying the existing ordinance we tried to clarify building

19

identification and a business identification.

20

ordinance can be -- just says business or building sign.

21

call everything a building sign if it's attached to a building,

22

but in reality what it is, you have a sign that's meant to

23

identify the building, a multi-tenant building.

24

have signs that are intended for business identifications,

25

which are intended to identify just the businesses.

The existing
They

And then you

A sample
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1

of this is in the upper left-hand corner, the Old Kahului

2

Store.

3

building, which has multi-tenants.

4

awning signs that we showed earlier, and those are business

5

identification signs,

6

business.

That's the building identification that identifies the
And then you see the two

'cause they identify just the individual

This is a ground sign, freestanding.

7

One of the

8

things, the additions within or modifications to the existing

9

ordinance is that we want to see some type of landscaping with

10

each and every ground sign.

11

example.

12

this, information and window signs.

13

informational sign is to -- we primarily look at an

14

informational sign as providing information on activities on

15

the property, store hours, conditions of sale, acceptable

16

credit cards.

17

sign.

18

business sign.

19

This is Kaahumanu, a good

You have landscaping at the base, a feature.

We saw

A requirement of an

It's not intended to be just another business ID

Whereas the window sign can be used, it can be used as a

We had a little trouble, and I will go over that in

20

another presentation, that with signs that are visible from a

21

public right-of-way or adjacent property but are located like

22

inside the building.

23

people have it 10 feet back inside against the wall.

24

you can see, if it's more than three feet away from the window

25

or opening of a business, and even though it's still visible

You know, how do you address those?

Some

And as
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1

from the right-of-way, we will not regulate those signs.

2

this is an example of a window sign.

3

all in your packets also.

4

setbacks, how far.

5

setback, we're talking about how far back the building frontage

6

or business frontage is. away from the property line with a

7

public right-of-way.

8

the demising wall, their leased space, and then the overall

9

building frontage is the entire building.

10

And

This is just, these are

It's what we mean when we talk about

When we talk about a business or building

And then a business frontage is basically

So generally you will have a building, or building

11

ID signs would generally be larger than the business ID.

12

you have some form of structure and hierarchy within the

13

signage on a building of multi-tenants.

14

same definitions of a lot that's in 1904, so we're not

15

conflicting anything, along with frontages.

16

And so why are we here?

So

And then we use the

Why are we trying to change

17

our existing law?

These are some of the things that we've

18

looked at.

19

clarity and simplicity.

20

earlier, if you read the existing ordinance on modification of

21

signs, it's like reading a math problem.

22

Chicago at 330 miles an hour with headwinds at five miles an

23

hour, and train B leaves Boston, you know, where do they meet?

24

And that's how you sort of calculate it how big a sign you

25

could get.

The motivations primarily provide some form of
As I was explaining to the Chair

Train A leaves

In the newer ones we basically take the word
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1

problems and just put in a graph in table form, so it's easy

2

for business owners to figure out how big a sign they get, you

3

know I

4

it's pretty clear-cut.
Enforcement, we have a few grey areas.

One of those

5

was the window signs, you know, and the signs that are inside a

6

building but visible from a public right-of-way.

7

to clarify those.

8

public/quasi-public districts, park districts, they're not

9

addressed in the existing ordinance, so we felt they needed to

We're trying

New districts, interim districts,

10

be addressed, because it became very cumbersome for business

11

owners, for non-profits, to go ahead and get a variance.

12

just became a little cumbersome, and we felt that we wanted to

13

streamline the process and make -- and have our office be more

14

responsive to their requests.

15

It

Big box retailers, recently that's kind of a new

16

phenomenon on Maui.

Most of your signs in traditional retail

17

areas, such as Market Street, pretty quaint buildings are close

18

to the road.

19

and the stores are not that big.

20

Home Depot, and all those others that have come in.

21

they're request

22

and they want to have 300 and 400 square foot signs.

23

the kind of signs that they're requesting, and we don't feel

24

that those are appropriate on this island.

25

how to deal with them, and the existing sign ordinance really

You have nice signs and an MRA and various areas,
Then you had Costco, Kmart,
And

they have a very I-5 mentality and 1-80,
Those are

And we didn't know
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1

has its limitations in trying to control those kinds of signs.

2

Sign complaints we had because of the grey areas, because of

3

some of the lax enforcement or whatever, we had many complaints

4

on both one, the use of banners, the use of window signs, the

5

big box retails, how can you allow such a big sign.

6

tried to -- that was our motivation.
Who are the stake holders?

7

8

makers instrumental.

9

committee.

So we

We looked at the sign

Sue Guille had organized an ad hock

We sat in on a few of those meetings to get some

10

ideas.

The Urban Design Review Board, who is the board charged

11

with reviewing these signs, they were getting bombarded with

12

lots of signs to review.

13

businesses, Outdoor Circle, and architects.

14

just, because of the calls we were getting from them and

15

various comments in talking with them, that kind of was the

16

impetus for us to kind of revise this ordinance and try to get

17

some ideas of where we're going to go.

18

with ad hoc makers, we talked to the local AIA, we met with gas

19

station owners, Public Works and Waste Management, who was --

20

actually, the ordinance was really charged with the Department

County enforcement, retailers and
We kind of, we

So we initially talked

·21

of Public Works.

However, the way the law and the way the

. 22

ordinance is written, 95 percent of the work is done in

23

planning where the permits are processed by us.

So we wanted

24

to get their input on how we can make this a little better and

25

more streamlined.
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1

Urban Design Review Board, like I said, we tried to

2

address some of their concerns with a lot of different work

3

that they were seeing, and concerns they had in general with

4

the community.

5

Business owners, Outdoor Circle, sign makers, architects,

6

property managers, people who were managing large commercial

7

properties, they wanted to get a handle on the signs that were

8

on the property, realtors, and just general concerned citizens

9

who were looking out for the

10

So we held two workshops in early 1998.

concerned with the way the

signs had been proliferating on Maui.
After we did an initial draft that's before you, we

11
12

did take it to the Boards and Commissions, the Planning

13

Department staffs.

14

better criteria for variances, and they agreed with the sliding

15

scale, but they did want to continue to review signs.

16

Planning Commission, they currently have a design guideline for

17

Lanai City.

18

really had no objections.

19

main concern was with the Hawaiian Homelands and how they would

20

be treated.

21

be affected, and they just wanted to make sure that we didn't

22

make any changes.

23

liked the ordinance.

24

involved in it and some of the board members on the Maui

25

Planning Commission were part of the urban design group that

We figured the Urban Design, they wanted a

Lanai

This ordinance would not affect them, so they
Molokai Planning Commission, their

We let them know that governmental lands would not

That was their main concern.

Overall, they

Planning Commission, they had been
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1

looked at it, and so they were just happy to see it move

2

along.

3

with it.

And they saw the change and they were pretty familiar

Okay, these are some of the major changes.

4

By no

5

means is this a comprehensive list, there are many changes.

6

But remember, we started with an existing ordinance and our

7

intent was to modify it, not to throw out everything, the baby

8

with the bath water, as they say, and try to draft it from

9

scratch.

We felt we had a base, a base sign ordinance that we

10

felt just needed to be tweaked and cleared up.

11

some actions that how they would be handled.

12

ground signs for interim districts, as I mentioned, is not

13

covered.

14

Board of Variances and Appeals.

15

it's an expensive process for anybody to go to, especially a

16

non-profit or a small business who had been operating for a

17

long time in that area.

18

it was community plan for Business.

19

are for areas that have an existing business on an interim

20

zoning property existing on conforming.

21

business changes.

22

community plan for Business, but they just haven't gotten

23

around to change the business.

24

currently acting on the comprehensive zoning, so hopefully this

25

will become moot.

It's not permitted.

So this is just
Business ID's or

You would have to go to the
It's a very expensive process,

We would be allowed to, provided that
So what happened, these

And you know the

They're still allowed to operate their

I know this Council is
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Multiple frontages.

1

We have corner lots, corner

Right now you're only allowed one sign on the same

2

businesses.

3

side of the business entrance.

4

additional sign, two signs maximum on the same side of the

5

entrance.

6

tenant building on a corner, you would still be allowed only

7

one sign.

8

business, you would be able to put two more signs on your

9

building because you would be qualified for a building ID sign,

We would allow for one

This primarily came about because you have a single

If you rented part of your space out to another

10

so that's where it came about.

11

Minit Stop right down the road.

12

frontages, so they would be allowed two signs.

13

An example of this would be
They front -- they have two

Business ID not located above the entrance.

The

14

ordinance reads that it has to be above the entrance before you

15

must go to Urban Design and it would be allowed, but must be on

16

the same side of the business.

17

from having to go through a process to be administratively

18

approved.

19

provision within the ordinance to allow for such a thing.

20

would allow it if prescribed by County and State notice

21

requirements.

22

Canada was whenever somebody came in for like a change in

23

zoning or a building or anything like that you never -- you

24

didn't know what was going on until you see the building.

25

what we -- -- but in these countries, and I've seen it in other

Project notice sign.

So a lot of this we're shifting

Right now there is no
We

One of the things I saw in Australia and in

So
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1

areas

2

a sign on the property letting everybody know, hey, this

3

project is coming in for a change in zoning from residential to

4

business.

5

notification requirements, but I felt that, you know, and we

6

talked about it in our department, and we're probably going to

7

move in that direction.

8

the ordinance so we wouldn't have to come back and change the

9

ordinance again.

g

when somebody comes in for a change in zoning they post

10

And so we currently don't have it in our

So we wanted to have it at least in

Business ID signs greater than 12 square feet.

11

Right now it's you have to put just your business name, no

12

bylines.

13

Hardware, More of Everything.

14

Hardware, because the rule is no bylines.

15

other instances, other businesses where Joe's Burger and Grill,

16

Best Burgers in Town, or whatever.

17

put Best Burgers in Town, or something like that.

18

going to control the content.

19

square feet, you can put what you want as long as it pertains

20

to the property.

21

An example was Eagle Hardware used to be Eagle
On Maui it's only Eagle
And then we've had

They wouldn't be allowed to
We're not

You get 12 square feet or 24

Signs greater than category "A."

Also reviewed by

22

Urban Design.

It will not go to Urban Design.

If it falls

23

within the sliding scale or sign size, as you see in your pages

24

on 9 and 10, it's just going to be administratively approved.

25

This will speed up the process for many of these businesses.
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1

So as far as time lines, we don't anticipate needing the 45

2

days or 90 days process sign permit.

3

turned around in just a few days.

4

very hot topic.

5

from a public right-of-way or adjacent property.

6

allow, once again, if you want to have -- if you have a 16 or

7

32 square foot ground sign and you want to list all your

8

tenants in it, that's fine, we're not going to control the

9

content.

10

We anticipate this can be

Directory signs, this is a

Not permitted[ period, unless it's not visible
We would

You can list all the businesses and that's -- right

11

now that's probably one of the biggest selling points for all

12

the businesses! they wanted that.

13

code at time of codification.

14

ordinance they've got to be removed now, the grandfather clause

15

has ended.

16

it was permitted under the old code with a valid sign permit

17

and we had permits, sign permits that go way back, then they

18

would be allowed to continue as long as they're not modified or

19

moved.

20

Eventually that sign is going to have to be replaced, so we

21

didn't think that this was a big issue.

22

Signs that do not conform to

Right under the existing

We're going to say that we're recommending that if

Our view on this .is that everything rusts in Hawaii.

Signs within the Public/Quasi Public districts,

23

i.e., private schools, private parks and churches.

Once again,

24

we're not regulating government property, so if it's, you know,

25

a government school then it's not going to be regulated by this
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1

ordinance.

2

permitted, variance required.

3

especially for a non-profit or limited funds.

4

would be allowed under this ordinance, we will allow it.

5

did create a category for them.

6

So private schools, private parks and churches, not
Once again, very cumbersome,
We would be, it
We

Signs greater than category "B" or larger than

7

permitted under our sliding scale.

It requires Urban Design

8

Review Board approval, however they've got to be more defined.

9

Each property has to show why they deserve to get a larger

10

sign.

11

more information.

12

existing law, we're requiring a little more information now.

13

So sign makers and businesses have to, when they come into us,

14

to the Board with a larger sign, they have to justify why,

15

showing what's bhe unique characteristics of their property.

16

It's just a little more stricter, and it has to provide
And currently the way we're implementing the

Temporary promotional signs for sales events or

17

special events allows up to seven days prior to an event must

18

move one day after, max 14 days.

19

limited to six times per year and new type of permit.

20

permit that we're envisioning for this is straight-forward,

21

half a sheet of page.

22

If you want to pull all six at the

23

can do that with, as you probably all know, the KIVA system,

24

which is the new integrated data network.

25

permits to a property and we can -- that's the only way we can

Will continue, however, to be
The

You fill it out, you get it that day.
beg~nning

of the year, you

We can attach these
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1

be able to enforce this to be able to keep track of all these

2

permits, is we can input.

3

and other departments know what permits we issue for a

4

particular property or unit.

5

We have a system now of enforcement,

Signs inside, we talked about these a little bit.

6

Allows the County to sign if more than three feet away from the

7

nearest window opening, does not count as a sign.

8

going to get into that.

9

Someone was willing to give up the space to hang a sign three

We're not

We just want to make it clear.

10

feet into their building, you know

11

areas, we met with Kapalua, Makena, and Kaanapali management

12

companies when we discussed this.

13

entry one directional is within the destination areas; the same

14

as existing, but they would be allowed additional signs if they

15

provide a comprehensive signage plan to the Director and it's'

16

approved by the Director, and most likely the Director will

17

send it to the Urban Design Review Board.

18

trouble with destination areas, they have a really clean, very

19,

controlled signage package there, and we don't feel there's

20

going to be a problem with this.

21

you can do it.

g

Destination

It was a lot of the primary

Applicability and effect.

We don't really have

Like I said, the

22

ordinance only covers, the existing ordinance covers all lands,

23

public and privately owned.

24

owned lands.

25

sign that's posted on the parks, it's going to be a parks

We will effect only privately

So if someone has got a sign complaint about a
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1

matter and they will have to come up with their own

2

administrative rules on how they handle banners and stuff like

3

that.

4

and the County is more accountable, we can regulate it through

5

other means.

We feel that it's our land, it's the community's land,

And that's it.

CHAIR MOLINA:

6

The Chair will call for a short one

7

minute recess.

Members, we are currently in recess.

8

reconvene in about

9

RECESS:

10:28 a.m.

10

RECONVENE:

10:30 a.m.

11

CHAIR MOLINA:

We shall

let's make that two minutes.

Members, all set to reconvene?

Okay,

12

I'd like to call the Public Works and Transportation meeting

13

back to order.

14

Members.

15

Yoshida here for your questions.

And right now for questioning from the

We have Joe Alueta along with Deputy Director Clayton

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

Mr. Kane.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

And I

17

wanted to thank Joe for making a statement at the beginning of

18

this presentation that what is being shown as far as the

19

proposed changes are by no means the only changes that could be

20

suggested.

21

made by a testifier at a prior meeting that these PowerPoint

22

presentations can be viewed as biased and can distract people

23

from looking at what other issues may be important for us to

24

consider as far as making good policy.

25

you to Joe for that, for making that statement.

And I think it follows up with a comment that was

So I want to say thank
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I do have just a couple of brief questions, Mr.

1
2

Chairman, if I may.

3

CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, sir.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Under the business ID signs

5

greater than 12 square feet, and you brought the proposed

6

draft, signed ordinance, this is the one with business name

7

with no byline.

8

on content.

9

pertains to the business, or something to that effect.

And then the proposed change would be no limit

Joe, you made a comment regarding as long as it
Can you

10

be more clear on that?

11

question of, you know, First Amendment Rights as far as, you

12

know, having freedom of speech and that kind of thing.

13

are you folks looking at that as far as enforcing -- I mean you

14

have your no limit and yet you made a comment as long as it

15

pertains to.

16

that.

17

And I know that there may be some

But how

You kind of contradicted yourself when you said

MR. ALUETA:

When I wrote that, what I mean is State

18

law, and ours is an ordinance that prohibits advertisement of

19

activities occurring on another property.

20

counted as a billboard under the State law, and we take that

21

same stance.

22

allowed to have a sign attached for the business, but they put,

23

you know, they make an advertisement for "Ace Hardware Two

24

Miles," "Ace Hardware located two miles down the road, come

25

shop there."

So it would be

So you cannot have, you know, one business is

Those are billboards.

And so as long as the
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1

activity is going on oil :Y6ti~ pr6perty, or where that sign is

2

attached, there's no limit on it.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

And I haven't had a chance to

4

look into detail on the ordinance proposed draf.t, but that

5

language is in there as far as referring back to state, State

6

law.

7

again, just in summary, youUre just saying no limit on content,

8

but in the language -- and again, I haven't gone into it in

9

detail, but is it stated in there?

10
11
12

I mean as far as the billboard portion of it.

MR. ALUETA:

Because

One is under definition of a sign, but

also if you look under prohibited signs.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

13

signs, I guess.

14

look through it.

Letter D under prohibited

Anyway, and if it's there I'll trust that as I

15

MR. ALUETA:

Under prohibited signs.

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Anyway, Joe, you don't have to

17

worry about that as long as it's some notation in there.

18

the next question I have is there may be a simple answer to

19

this, I just didn't catch it, maybe I didn't catch it.

20

the temporary promotional signs for sales and special events,

21

the current sign ordinance is what was said, and then the

22

proposed draft sign ordinance will continue to be permitted,

23

however will be limited to a max of six.

24

six come from, just curiosity?

25

MR. ALUETA:

And

Under

Where did the number

Actually, it came five years ago in the
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1

signmakers' meeting, and it originally was like they threw out

2

about four times, you know/ once every

3

now.

4

you know, and then a compromise came with just six.

5

or reason, just six sounded good.

6

two months, up to two weeks/ if you plan it right.

7

seem too unreasonable.

We threw out four, I threw out four as one per quarter,

CHAIR MOLINA:

8

9

she's denying it

No rhyme

That means you get one every

Mr. Kane, I apologize.

It didn't

Just for our

readers' information, there two different drafts, the one

10

that's located in your binder, and I believe this was an

11

updated draft that was given to you this morning.

12

make references to pages and letters, I presume we will be

13

looking in the updated draft.

14

continue.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So when we

Okay, thank you, you may

Mr. Chairman, just for

16

reference on that, the one that's listed Section one, Chapter

17

64.12A/ which was handed out to us on our desk, is that the one

18

you're referring to?

19

"outdoor" is bracketed and the word "commercial" is

20

underlined.

21

clarification?

The one that changes -- the word

Is that the one you're referring to, just for

22

MR. ALUETA:

Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, thank you.

And on

24

that note, Mr. Chairman, if I may, there was just one thing

25

that I noticed.

That on page 2 of that there was an open
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1

bracket, but there wasn't a closed bracket on page 2 where the

2

quote of political sign.

3

and no big deal, but there wasn't a closed bracket.

4

assuming that a bracket stands for it's not going to be there

5

anymore, so I don't know where that end bracket -- the

6

beginning bracket is there; there is no end bracket.

7

know if that's me or a miss, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA:

S

9

I don't know if that was just a miss,
And

I don't

Mr. Kane, was that under political

sign or portable, page 2?

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

The one that was handed to us

11

this morning on page 2 under the quote portable sign where you

12

see a bracket there.

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

Right, um-hmm.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

MR. HIRAGA:

I don't see the other bracket.

Oh, there's no closed bracket.
There is no closed bracket.

If I may, I believe this new revised

18

version, and Corp Counsel can correct me if I am wrong, but the

19

new revised version retains Chapter 16.12A to address the issue

20

of campaign signs or anything dealing with campaign or

21

political signs is being retained.

22

section on the definition of political campaign signs is being

23

retained.

24

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So you're correct, that

And I understand that.

But

right after political campaign signs, all of that is going to
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1

be removed, 16.12A.

2

MR. HIRAGA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

You mean portable?

all the way through for pages and pages before it closes?

5

MR. HIRAGA:

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8
9

10

Yes, from portable, and it goes

That's correct.
Where does it end?
That's my question, where does

it end, where is the closed bracket?
MR. HIRAGA:

I'll defer this question to Traci

Fujita-Villarosa.

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

The

13

revised draft that the Council members received this morning,

14

what it does is if you look at the draft in your binder, if you

15

look under Section 1 it says Chapter 16.12A of the Maui County

16

Code pertaining to outdoor signs is repealed, and that's the

17

current sign ordinance.

18

office to make a change, because there was a concern regarding

19

political campaign signs, they wanted to retain just that

20

portion of the old sign ordinance.

21

The Planning Department requested our

So the way that that appears in the draft form is

22

we've deleted almost the whole current sign ordinance, Chapter

23

16.12A, except we left in the purpose and intent, the one

24

definition of a political, where is that, political campaign

25

sign, and then it's all deleted until the regulations on page
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1

five.

2

just the last section regarding the political campaign signs is

3

remaining, and that's the only thing that's going to be left of

4

Chapter 16.12A.

5

entirety, but now that's the only thing that's going to be

6

remaining.

7

talking about is that part hasn't been changed, and that's been

8

numbered to 16.13 after that.

Where is it?

That section was renumbered to .030.

See, the original plan was to delete it in its

And then the new sign ordinance that Joe has been

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

And

Let me clarify my question

10

then.

On page 2 under portable sign you have a beginning

11

bracket.

12

I would sayan open bracket.

13

page 2 through page 3, all the way through page 4, you arrive

14

on page 5.

I don't know what the proper terminology is, but it's
And then if you follow through to

The closed bracket is where the 16.12A.090 is.

15

MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

That's correct.
Thank you very much, that was

the clarification.

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Question for Corp Counsel.

19

that ends, okay, right at the number.

20

there's a bracket after "signs.

21

end at the beginning of the 16.12A.030 or 090?

22
23

1i

MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:
typo.

I guess

I notice in letter D

Now, so does it officially

Oh, yes, I see.

That's a

There should be a bracket right before the capital A.

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.
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MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

1

2

there for, thanks.

3

MR. HIRAGA:

4

MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

5

Yes, the bracket appears.
Yes, oh, I see, there is a

bracket there.

6
7

Yes, there should be one

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Because you have another closed

bracket over at D,.

8

MS. FUNITA-VILLAROSA:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

Right.
So you need an open bracket.

MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

So it would just read, "For

11

all districts, signs or posters not exceeding 18 square feet in

12

display surface."

So that would --

13

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

14

MR. HIRAGA:

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

17

So the startup bracket starts at "The."
All right.
Okay, thank you.

I'm done,

thank you.

18
19

It starts at A.

CHAIR MOLINA:
bring up.

20

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

Good point to

Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Mr. Chairman, if I can ask

21

how you're planning to proceed with this particular ordinance?

22

Because it's a very complicated ordinance, it has a lot of

23

pages.

24

this.

25

get to those.

I would like to start at the beginning and go through
What Mr. Kane is pointing out is important.

We need to

But I think there'S going to be quite a few
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1

comparisons we're going to have to do between the two

2

ordinances.

3

old one in the book, but we seem to be deleting a lot of it.

4

And if we're going to go through it systematically, and perhaps

5

working through it we can get the explanations from the

6

department as to what they're trying to accomplish in each

7

section.

8
9

And we just got the new one today, and we had the

So starting at, you know

t

the very first of the new

bill, he's deleting "outdoor" and putting in "noncommercial."

10

And we go down there and there's a deletion in the first

11

paragraph, a change in the second paragraph, three changes in

12

the second paragraph.

13

change.

14

thing.

15

referenced to I think we need to have it very clear.

16

like to start at the very beginning just to be systematic.

17

can skip around, but how are we going to keep track of it?

We get down to 16.12A there's another

I mean there's constant changes throughout this entire
And where it's being changed from what is being

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

So I'd
I

If I'm interpreting this right, I

19

know this draft just came to all of us this morning, and there

20

have been several changes, and I guess some additional concerns

21

expressed by the community with regards to some of the proposed

22

amendments.

23

maybe possibly deferring this for further review.

24

Mr. Akana, hang on, let me finish with Mr. Arakawa.

25

know, if we're going to specifically look at the changes, is

I will leave this up to the body.

I will consider
Let me,
So, you
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1

that what you're saying?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

2

If we're going to look at

3

this ordinance, first of alII we need to understand the

4

ordinance and what they're trying to do with each paragraph in

5

this ordinance.

6

MR. HIRAGA:

Mr. Chairman, if I may.

I think to

7

provide some claritYr the first section of this newly revised

8

proposed bill, the only purpose is to retain provisions

9

relating to campaign signs.

So in effect r those provisions

10

already exist in the current ordinance.

11

will be the first section dealing with 16.12A.

12

sort of ignore it, because all it's doing is deleting all

13

sections in the current sign ordinance that does not relate to

14

campaign political signs.

15

transmitted proposed bill is now just renumbered as 16.13.

16

the provisions are the same.

17

some slight revisions to delete small sections r but essentially

18

what was originally transmitted has now just been renumbered as

19

16.13.

20

revised proposed bill I think --

21

So essentiallYr it
I guess you can

Anything that was in the originally
So

Maybe, I don't know if we made

So if you focus your attention on that portion of the

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

I can understand what you're

22

saying.

But if you look at what we have in our binder and you

23

look at what we were given todaYr there's very little

24

correlation.

25

with the bill for an ordinance, explains what it is, Chapter

In other words, the one in our binder starts out
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1

16.12, gives the definitions, signs, and it goes through.

2

entire language that's there doesn't correlate with what we

3

were just handed.

4

copies.

6

We're looking at two completely different

CHAIR MOLINA:

5

The

Can you cite that example again,

Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

7

Okay, starting at the bill

8

for an ordinance that's in our binder that's on I guess the

9

third page where it starts

10
11

MR. HlRAGA:

If you match that with page 11 of the

new bill, which has now been renumbered from 16.12 to 16.13.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

13

we've got to jump around with it.

·14

MR. HlRAGA:

15

now just been renumbered as 16.13.

16

because all that does is retain the campaign political sign

17

provisions that are currently in the ordinance.

18

they're doing is deleting everything else in 16.12A.

19

focus in on the 16.13 and you can compare that to the original,

20

originally transmitted bill.

21

That's what I'm saying,

16.12 in the original transmittal has

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

So don't look at 16.12A,

So what
So just

So you're saying this

22

document that we were just handed, we ignore the first 11

23

pages?

24

MR. HIRAGA:

Or 10 and a half.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

10 and a half pages.

So all
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1

of those bracketed things, underlined things that are in this,

2

we just ignore it.
MR. HIRAGA:

3

4

It just pertains to political campaign

signs.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

5

Well then, why are you

6

bracketing "outdoor" to be removed and putting "noncommercial"

7

underlined, why are all these changes being recommended in here

8

if that's
MR. HIRAGA:

9

Because I believe the intent is that

10

because everything else is being deleted, the only thing that's

11

left is a noncommercial campaign political sign.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

13

language that's still there.

14

language, Roz?

15
16

You haven't deleted all the

It was taken, we start at page 11.

MR. HlRAGA:

I don't know how to explain it any

further.

17
18

CHAIR MOLINA:

The Chair will call for a five minute

recess.

19

RECESS:

10:47 a.m.

20

RECONVENE:

10:50 a.m.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

22

But you still have all this

Okay, thank you. Okay, the Public

Works and Transportation meeting is now reconvened.

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Mr. Chairman?

Yes, sir, Mr. Hokama.
Thank you very much. Excuse
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1

me, Chairman.

2
3

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Don't I still have the

floor?
CHAIR MOLINA:

4

I'm sorry.

Okay, we have Mr. Arakawa

5

still on the floor.

6

Chair, in light of the I guess confusion or for clarification

7

purposes with regards to the new draft just handed to us, I

8

would like to ask the Planning Department to submit in writing

9

the concerns of Mr. Arakawa or any other member with regards to

10

clarification of the amendments and changes that have been made

11

in this new draft.

12

Before you continue, Mr. Arakawa, the

Mr. Arakawa?

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Yeah, thank you for the

13

recess so I could get an explanation from Corp Counsel.

14

understanding of what is happening is because we're changing

15

the application of the sign ordinance from a totally

16

encompassing sign ordinance, which is outside and noncommercial

17

Public/Quasi-PublicI essentially they're taking all of the

18

items that are within this and they are now recreating an

19

entire new document, some of which has been incorporated within

20

the new document, some of which has been deleted or added onto

21

totally.

22

My

It's a complete new document.
At the same time, we're still trying to retain part

23

of what was in the original document.

And we still need to go

24

through and we need to understand what we're retaining, because

25

it is part of the sign ordinance, and we are going to end up
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1

with this as law.

2

whatever they want to take out, we still have to retain this in

3

its changed form.

4

suggestion by suggestion to make sure that what they want

5

deleted is deleted, and what they don't want deleted is

6

considered, and we're going to end up with a completely

7

different document.

8
9

So after we get done with taking out

So we're going to have to go through

Now, in light of that also, the department has gone
through a lot of discussion with a lot of different

10

organizations.

11

years that I can remember, because I remember having some of

12

these discussions real early on in my political career.

13

I'd like to do is go through this pretty much paragraph by

14

paragraph at some point in this discussion, having the

15

department now re-explain why they're going through the

16

language that they have.

17

but it was not real specific.

18

correlate what was deleted from the original, what is being

19

deleted from the current bill, and how it mayor may not be

20

correlating into this new bill.

21

This has been over a period of at least five

What

The PowerPoint presentation was good,
And at the same time trying to

Because I know when we were discussing this earlier

22

there were a lot of concerns from a lot of people within the

23

community that use signs, and I'd like to be able to understand

24

what's happening pretty much aligned to one person maybe having

25

a completely different connotation than someone else, and a
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1

particular business might be affected much more by a particular

2

area than another business.

3

CHAIR MOLINA:

So they each have significance.

If I may add an opinion from the Corp

4

Counsel, being that we are having a reading on this item,

5

public hearings.

6

hearings on this ordinance at this point?

7

many concerns with, you know, I guess going over, paragraph by

8

paragraph.

9

public hearings on this, additional public hearings?

Are we required to have additional public
Because there are

Should we also or is it required that we have
After we

10

get done with this ordinance, making the changes, are we

11

required to have public hearings on this ordinance?

12

make substantive changes, do we have to now go back to the

13

Planning Commissions that originally reviewed these?

14

MS. FUJITA-VILLAROSA:

And if we

Well, the bill would go

15

through the process like any other bill.

So, you know, you're

16

going to pass it out of committee and then it would go onto the

17

full Council.

18

are made, I can't see it being so substantial that it would

19

need to go back through the process that the Planning

20

Department went through, which they did on their own.

21

they didn't have to have all of these workshops and meetings

22

with the community groups and such, that was an extra thing

23

that they did because they wanted to get the community input.

24

But we could make that final determination on whether it needs

25

to go back for review at such time that we get all the

The changes that, if there are any changes that

I mean
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But I would think that

an~

1

changes.

changes that are made

2

would be anticipated changes, you kdow, as the Council members

3

having heard from public testimony

~

a:nd
"

ij

from your constituents.

II

4

I can't see them being so totally different as you would change

5

the whole nature of the bill.

6

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

7

CHAIR MOLINA:

Y;bu' re changing --

Mr. Arakaw,~, if I may interrupt, Mr.
~.

8

Hokama had a question, and then we dln come back to you.

Mr.

Ii

9

Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

10

Chairman, I don't have a
Ii
11

11

question, I have a request.

I would I: request that you defer

12

this item, that your staff be directed to provide a matrix for

Ii

Ii
1,(

13

the committee of what is existing, what is proposed,

14

justification for that change proposal, and that it be laid out

11

I;

I'Ii

15

If

in a way that it would be easy to fotlow and comprehend.

And

1j,

16

possibly one suggestion, Mr. Chairma"
-

would be repeal

il

17

everything and start from just a bra1d new proposal.

I think

18

that may be one way to avoid confusi0n and referral back and

19

forth through different chapters of tlhe proposed and existing

20

code.

21

we can continue to go on with other irtters on the agenda.

Ii

.

t

So that would be my request tdyou at this time, so that
It

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

23

Mr. Arakawa, if you want to wrap up

24

recommendation.

25

Okay, thanM you, Mr. Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

I

~efore

Okay,

I make my

I
Baisically, that's what I'm

I

!
!
!

I
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1

asking for, is a clear explanation of the entire bill, how we

2

come to where we're coming at as compared to what we have

3

currently.
CHAIR MOLINA:

4

Okay, before I make my

5

recommendation, I do want to commend Mr. Alueta for putting in

6

the time to research this ongoing matter.

7

stated before, I believe it was first taken up somewhat I guess

8

five years ago, and it's not an easy ordinance to deal with.

9

do believe there have been some improvements, and I guess there

As Mr. Arakawa had

10

are some other amendments that have come under question that

11

may need some tweaking here and there.

12

make -- before I do that, Mr. Kawano.
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO:

13

So I will go ahead and

Yes, thank you, Mr.

14

Chairman.

I just want to thank Joe too.

Joe, I think the

15

presentation you did was a good one, only I think it was a

16

little too fast.

17

want to thank you for that.

18

just had to share that, thank you.

But it was a good presentation, and I just
And thank you, Mr. Chairman.

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane?
One short comment.

I would

21

agree, I would hope that you would consider directing your

22

staff to do

23

user friendly for us to comprehend the proposals from what

24

exists.

25

deferral at this time.

a matrix.

I

I think that would make it a lot more

And so I will be real supportive of that and a

I

68

Thank you

CHAIR MOLINA:

1

g

Mr. Kane.

Any other

2

comments from the members?

3

recommendation that we defer this item and address the specific

4

concerns from the members from the Planning Department.

5

the very least, this was a very informational presentation for

6

the membership, as well as the general public.

7

will recommend deferral of this item.

8

objections.
CHAIR MOLINA:.

9
10

If at

So the Chair

If there are no

Council members voiced no

objections. Okay, thank you.
MR. HIRAGA:

11

12

Okay, it is the Chair's

Mr. Chairman, for clarification, if I

may ask.

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

14

MR. HIRAGA:

Yes, sir, Mr. Hiraga.
The matrix that is being requested, is

15

the request over and above the matrix that is already included

16

in the original transmittal that notes the changes from the

17

current ordinance versus the new draft ordinance?

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

19

MR. HIRAGA:

20
21

22

I'm not clear, because a matrix is

included.
CHAIR MOLINA:

In other words, there already is one

present that was given?

23

MR. HlRAGA:

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

25

Okay.

That's correct.
And so, Mr. Hokama, your suggestion

would be, of the matrix you're talking about, an additional one
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1

to the one that has already been given, or have you seen the

2

matrix?
MR. HIRAGA:

3

4

Does he want to account for all changes

in addition to the major ones, which means --

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

6

CHAIR MOLINA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Chairman?

Yes, sir.
Any changes that's being

8

proposed needs to be made clear to each committee member before

9

it reaches Council, so I would hope that everything would be

10

listed.

11

it's referring to in the proposal, so we have a clear

12

understanding of the format that it will be in upon final

13

approval by Council.

14
15

It will be listed by the sections or subsections that

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Is that a bit more clear to

you, Mr. Hiraga?

16

MR. HIRAGA:

So if I may ask though, as it applies

17

to 16.12A, every section that's proposed for deletion you would

18

want to know where that new section -- what happened to that

19

section?

20
21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

If we're going to repeal the

whole section, just put down repealing the whole section.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO:

23

CHAIR MOLINA:

Yeah.

That's in line with the request that

24

was made earlier of the Planning Department and maybe Corp

25

Counsel to address these additional changes with the new draft

70

1
2

that came to us this mo:ttiiflg.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And Mr. Chairman, I think it

3

would be also a lot easier for those in the public or business

4

sector that would like to follow how it, how the code is being

5

adjusted, I think it will be easier for them to also follow the

6

changes as we work it through the committee.

7

8
9

CHAIR MOLINA:

A somewhat more user friendly matrix,

if I can say.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

That's correct.

And I think

10

we have experienced -- I think Ms. Tavares to my left, as the

11

Chair of the Planning Committee, has provided that committee

12

with a matrix that has made it easy for us to follow.

13

think our staff has the experience to bring that to your

14

committee also.

15
16
17

CHAIR MOLINA:
other comments?

And I

Okay, your remarks are so noted.

Any

Mr. Kane.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chairman, I just wanted to

18

state for the record that under the description of our agenda

19

for today I think it's very clear that we have a bill for an

20

ordinance repealing Chapter 16.12A, and we have another -- and

21

amending Title 16 of the Maui County Code.

22

have is pretty clear.

23

us with a matrix to show those changes.

24

changes, but I think what's being requested is all the changes,

25

so we can look at that and be able to come to a conclusion on

So I think what we

What we're just asking for is to provide
And not only the major
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1

the decision on what we't~ gOiflg to do.

2

CHAIR MOLINA:

So in addition to the changes that

3

have already been proposed prior to this meeting, the

4

additional changes that have been requested today also on this

5

new matrix.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Well, if you look at the title

7

of the matrix there, it says Summary Sheet of Major Changes.

8

Well, I think the request is for all the changes.

9

10

CHAIR MOLINA:
to everyone involved?

l I o n this matter?
12

Okay, thank you.

Okay.

to our next item.

All the changes.

Okay. Is that clear

Any further discussion

All right, Members, I'd like to go on

A one minute recess.

13

RECESS:

11:01 a.m.

14

RECONVENE: 11:02 a.m.

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

The meeting is reconvened.

We

16

are on item 2 with regards to traffic safety at the

17

intersection of Makawao Avenue and Baldwin Avenue.

18

Members, you heard testimony with regards to this issue.

19

have to address this issue.

20

have Public Works Director David Goode and Corp Counsel Howard

21

Nakamura [Sic}, and also Deputy Police Chief Keku Akana.

22

Discussion, Members.

23

24
25

Earlier,

For informational purposes, we

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Can we just cut to the chase

and have a four-way stop tried up there?
CHAIR MOLINA:

We

Okay.

There's been a request --
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1

COUNCILMEMB~R

TAVARES:

We've done it in Lahaina

2

before, and the Lahaina intersection 'is very successful.

3

sounds like everybody wants to try it, and last resort put in a

4

traffic light.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

7

It

Second.
You know, we're tired, let's

get on with it, it's almost lunchtime.

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

MR. GOODE:

Mr. Goode, any comments?

Mr. Chair, I'll also try to cut to the

10

chase real quick.

Just for the Council's information, we did

11

have a site inspection back in May of 2000.

12

engineers at various strategic locations of the intersection,

13

watched the school traffic.

14

And it's important that you at least know that a four-way stop

15

is warranted, okay, so that at least we're not doing something

16

that's not warranted which would expose us to certain

17

liabilities.

18

four-way stop, and under the ordinance that we passed last year

19

it gives the department the ability to go do that and report

20

back to Council, just like we did in Lahaina.

21

support that.

22

can do that a little farther down the time frame, if the

23

members like, I can go into further detail on that.

We had our traffic

We also took some traffic counts.

The department is in full support of trying the

So we would

And finally, there's a couple of other things we

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

25

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

Okay.

Any objections, Members?

Mr. Chairman, if I may.
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1

CHAIR MOLINA:

2

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

Yes, sir.

Mr. Nakashima?

Fukushima, but never mind.

This

3

matter should be referred to the Traffic Safety Council as it

4

deals with traffic safety.

5

Council under its charge must review all matters relating to

6

traffic safety in the County and make recommendations to this

7

Councilor to the Council.

We believe that the Traffic Safety

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

Thank you.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Kane?

Yeah, so Howard, so what are

10

you suggesting, that we not move on this until that is referred

11

and then we wait for the answer backr is what you're

12

recommending?

13

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

Yes.

The Code requires that matters

14

relating to traffic safety be referred to the Traffic Safety

15

Council for their recommendation.

16

matter relates to traffic safety and should be referred to them

17

for their recommendation.

18

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

It's my belief that this

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

If I

may.

20

CHAIR MOLINA:

Yes, sir.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

In the future then it required

22

for this to come to us to get that referral, or can it go

23

directly from the department straight to the Traffic Safety

24

Council?

25

because it seems like if there's no requirement for it to come

And I'm just trying to understand the process,
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1

here to get referred then we just expended about, you know,

2

whatever amount of time to do something that could have been

3

done in a more streamlined fashion.

4

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay, Mr. Goode, your comments on

5

that.

If that be the case with any future proposals for stop

6

signs or traffic lights l

7

believe that is the assessment made here, that it be referred

8

first to the Traffic Safety Council before the Council acts on

9

it and gets a recommendation.

10
11

should they be referred first.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I

Mr. Chairman, I think that's a

Corp. Counsel question.

12

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

If I may, Mr. Chairman.

I don't see

13

anything inappropriate with the matter coming to the Council

14

and at the same time being referred to the Traffic Safety

15

Council so there wouldn't be any time loss if that happened to

16

be the occasion.

17

transmitted at the same time to the Traffic Safety Council for

18

their consideration, and the matter being before the Council

19

also.

20

before a recommendation from the Traffic Safety Council is

21

obtained.

This matter I believe could have been also

It's just that I don't believe the Council should act

22

COUNCI LMEMBER KANE:

23

CHAIR MOLINA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

right now it's here.

And Mr. Chairman, if I may.

Yes, Mr. Kane.
So now I understand that.

We've posted it on an agenda and now

But
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1

we're not going to act on it in a committee until the referral

2

is made.

3

their agenda, they meet t they discuss itt they decide on it,

4

the recommendation comes back up to us, we spend another six

5

days to post it, get it back on an agenda before we act on it.

6

That's where I'm saying does it have to come to us, or in the

7

future can it just be directly to the Traffic Safety Council

8

before it comes up with a recommendation before we act?

It goes to the Traffic Safety Council, they post

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

So you're applying in the interest of

10

expediting time and maybe just

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

12

expediting time.

13

waste time or not?

Well, I don't know about

Again, I'm just looking fort you know, did we

14

CHAIR MOLINA:

15

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

Exactly, not just to cut through -If I maYt Mr. Chairman.

As long as

16

the requirement as set forth in the Code that matters relating

17

to Traffic Safety Council are referred to them and they make

18

their recommendation l

19

As far as the mechanics of it, whether the Council has it or

20

the Traffic Safety Council t I don't think there's any real

21

exclusivity required.

22

I think that's all that has to be done.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman, thank

23

you.

Howard, what I'm asking you, and lim sorry for not being

24

clear, does it have to come to us in order to get referred or

25

can it just be from the department directly to the Traffic
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So

t, injli~~ i~;~king

at does the Code require

1

SafetyCouncil?

2

it to come to us or the Charter require it to come to us before

3

it goes to them?

4

can, in the future, so we don't have to deal with going through

5

an extra three or four steps here, it seems like we can just,

6

you know r do it that way.

7

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

Can it just go straight to them?

And if it

That's all I'm asking.
Okay.

The Code does not require the

8

matter to be referred by the Council to the Traffic Safety

9

Council.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

12

I'm sorry if I misunderstood the

question.

13
14

Thank you, Howard.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

No, no, maybe the question was

not stated clearly.

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

Mr. Arakawa and then Mr. Hokama.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

17

Mr. Chairman, actually, if something is referred to the Council

18

we can also do a dual referral and refer it to the Traffic

19

Safety.

20

it's on your agenda and it doesn't have to be referred back to

21

the full Council back to the committee.

22

time by doing that, by splitting it.

23

requirement for anything to come into, come to us to be

24

deferred, doing it that way is more -- saves a lot of time, I

25

think.

It's probably better to do it as a dual because then

So you save a lot of

While there is no
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1

But my question to Howard, if we're working on this

2

issue and this is the recommendation, is this coming out as a

3

recommendation to administration so that if we were to look at

4

this matter and say, you know, we were in favor of doing a

5

four-way stop, and this goes to the Traffic Safety Council and

6

they agree, could we not do it that way at this point and just

7

let Dave go ahead, administrative, just looking at a request

8

from us and it's not a directive from the Council?

9

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

Are you indicating that perhaps Dave

10

could exercise his authority to erect a temporary traffic

11

safety control or traffic control device?

12

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

No.

What I'm asking is, in

13

the hierarchy of how things get done, in the legislature, our

14

branch can make a suggestion, the administration has to do it.

15

MR. FUKUSHIMA: Well, in this case

16

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

So if, in what we're doing,

17

if we're not directing administration to do it and we're only

18

making a suggestion to administration, is it out of line to

19

say, okay, take it to the Traffic Safety Council.

20

read on this is the same as ours, then perhaps administration

21

could just go ahead and do it.

22

them, we're just making our sentiments known.

23

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

If their

Because we're not directing

Well, under the present setup stop

24

signs are regulated by ordinance.

And so if a stop sign was

25

going to be created here it would be -- Council action would be
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1

required.

2
3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Point of information,

Mr. Chair.

4

CHAIR MOLINA:

Yes, Mr. Kane.

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Under Section 10.28.30,

6

temporary traffic control devices, there is no Council approval

7

needed, and in that case the Director can already proceed with

8

doing that on a temporary basis of up to 8 weeks.

9

end of that time can come back to us recommending the findings

And at the

10

of that traffic common device or whatever, traffic control

11

device, and then we can act on it.

12

passed, you know, just this last year.

13

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

And I think this was

That's correct.

I thought the

14

question for Councilmember Arakawa was whether the

15

administration could just go out there after review by the

16

Traffic Safety Council.

17

stop signs at intersections of this sort are regulated by

18

ordinance.

19

My response was that traffic signs,

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Well, what I'm getting to,

20

Howard, is we have this here.

I want to try and expedite the

21

situation.

22

has the power to go up there, try this project, it's going to

23

be on a trial basis, that's what's being recommended.

24

the Traffic Safety Council concurs, perhaps administration can

25

go ahead and actually do it without going through a whole lot

All I'm suggesting is that if the administration

That if
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1

of routine delay.

Ther~l~ ft.~ f~quitement for that.

2

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

4

On a temporary basis.
That's what we're asking, as

a trial.

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Mr. Hokama?
I think it's pretty clear

7

that my understanding was for Mr. Goode as Director of Public

8

Works to do a temporary program that's authorized by the Code.

9

I think that's how we approached the Lahaina situation, with a

10

temporary project to see if it does work or not, and it still

11

allows the ability of this committee to send to the traffic

12

control, the Council, for a response.

13

that we put a deadline for them to respond back to your

14

committee, Mr. Molina.

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

And I would recommend

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

A question

16

for Mr. Goode. Temporary meaning about roughly up to how many

17

days would we have this proposed fourth stop sign?

18

MR. GOODE:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20
21
22

I believe the ordinance allows 8 weeks.
8 weeks, okay.

Any other questions

or discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO:

Mr. Chairman, do we have a

motion on the floor?

23

CHAIR MOLINA:

24

motion if this is t'he body's intent.

25

is to approve a temporary or -- a temporary fourth stop sign as

Not at this time.

I will call for a

The motion on the floor
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by

1

directed -- as recommended

the Public Works Director, or we

2

can also look at having this referred to the Traffic -- Traffic

3

Council.

4

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

6

RECESS:

11:17 a.m.

7

RECONVENE:

11:20 a.m.

8

CHAIR MOLINA:

9

Mr. Chairman?

Yes, Mr. Arakawa.

Short recess.

Okay, our Public Works and

Transportation meeting has now reconvened.

After conferring

10

with the Corp Counsel, I will consider a motion to defer this

11

item and have the Public Works Director consider a fourth stop

12

sign for the intersection of Makawao Avenue and Baldwin

13

Avenue.

14

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

15

COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO:

16

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

17

CHAIR MOLINA:

So moved.
No objection.
No objection.

No objections?

All

Okay, the item has been deferred.

right~

thank you

18

very much.

And if it's okay

19

with the body, the Chairman will submit the recommendations to

20

the Corp Counsel and the Deputy, excuse me, Public Works

21

Director.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

No objections.

23

CHAIR MOLINA:

24

Okay, moving on, Members, let's go on to our last

25

item for the day, PWT 67, the rental of portable toilets for

Thank you very much.
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1

Makawao parking lot.

Discussion Members?

Yes, sir.

2

have Mr. Arakawa first, followed by Mr. Kane.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

Okay, we

My question to Public Works,

4

if we approve this can you just go out and do this, Dave?

5

Rent, is it within your budget?

6

MR. GOODE:

We're not budgeted for $300 a month for

7

five or six months or the remainder of the year to take this

8

on.

9

We'd have to sacrifice some other activity.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

So in considering this

10

particular bill then, what we need to look at is giving the

11

people of Makawao, the businesses in Makawao the ability to

12

place the facilities in the parking lot and allow to have them

13

pay for it basically for the department.

14
15
16

And Howard, can we accept the liability of having
that placed in there, under the County liability?
MR. FUKUSHIMA:

Well, if we're allowing the Makawao

17

-- I guess Main Street Association to place them there, then

18

they would be indemnifying us.

19

indemnify it if we're allowing them to use County property for

20

that purpose.

21

We would require that they

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

If there's no set

22

organization there, but just it's rather just businesses that

23

request, how can we do that as far as the liability?

24

25

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

Well, I guess then it would be an

administrative decision as to whether it would be an acceptable
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1

practice to in this case

2

CHAIR MOLINA:

aceept

liability.

Gentlemen, if I may interject for a

3

moment.

Mr. Nakamura made reference to the Makawao Main

4

Street.

If it's okay with Mr. Fukushima -- I'm sorry, I keep

5

getting, I don't know why I keep getting, I don't know why your

6

name is mispronounced.

7

body, can I have maybe Jocelyn Perreira, who testified earlier

8

on the issue, if you would like to give your comments with

9

regards to the Main Street stance on this for informational

10

My apologies.

If it's okay with the

purposes?
MS. PERREIRA:

11

Just to clarify, Main Street, the

12

Main Street Association is not the ones who proposed to go and

13

collect funds from the businesses, so on and so forth.

14

Main Street Association referred the request to John Wayne

15

Enriques, who was the former representative of this district.

16

He in my presence picked up the phone and called Charlie Jencks

17

and told the Public Works Director if they could put out a

18

temporary public restroom in Makawao until he could put it in

19

as a line item in the budget for a restroom improvement in

20

Makawao, and that's where this originated.

.

21

The

Mr. Charlie Levy is an individual request, and it

22

was he who took it upon himself as an individual to talk to

23

some of the businesses.

24

facility.

25

former Councilmember Enriques to provide a temporary public

We are in support of a more permanent

However, if there was a good faith response from the
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1

restroom, and that was our understanding, that was at the

2

County's expense, then perhaps you should look at whether or

3

not that commitment should be kept.

4

it's not the Main Street organization who is going to be

5

collecting funds to be able to pay for this, because we're not

6

going to be accepting that responsibility for the liability.

7
8

CHAIR MOLINA:

But as far as Main Street,

Thank you very much, Jocelyn.

Mr. Arakawa, continue.

9

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA:

That's really where it comes

10

down to.

11

restroom facilities in the parking lot in Makawao, so it would

12

be a liability that the County would have to accept if we're

13

going to be doing that.

14

solicit funds, we'd have to also be willing to accept those

15

donations I guess to the Public Works Department for the

16

maintenance of the payments of the facility.

17

that's really what we're looking at right now.

:18

19

We have a request to put in a bathroom facility,

If Mr. Levy is willing to go out and

Because

according to what you're telling me, David, we don't have
funding to be able to do this.

20

MR. GOODE:

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

22

And I think

That's correct.
Okay, thank you.

Mr. Kane, you have

a question?

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I'll yield to Mr. Hokama.

Okay, Mr. Hokama.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Not to
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1

be the devil's advocate, but I'm in a quandry.

I know our

2

responsibilities to provide certain public facilities at

3

public, public facilities, like at a County beach park.

4

to provide businesses for their patrons their restroom

5

facilities, I'm not really Sold on that position, that the

6

County should be responsible to provide business patrons public

7

restroom facilities.

8

otherwise.

For us

So I would hope someone can convince me

9

The second thing about this temporary thing is do we

10

know what is the Department of Health requirements and how long

11

can a temporary facility be there before it's deemed unsuitable

12

for public use?

13

and who is going to be the responsible agency should a health

14

situation arise.

15

to assume responsibility, whether the Department of Health will

16

step in and initiate some kind of action, whether it be fines

17

or notices of violations.

18

quick fix, particularly when one of the advocates for this is

19

also advocating breaking the law by promoting jaywalking on

20

County streets.

21

to try and promote Makawao business.

22

is just making me very uncomfortable, and I will not be one

23

supporting the County to be put in a higher liability

24

situation.

25

And again! I'm concerned about the liability

Whether, you know, Mr. Goode is going to have

You know, I'm not convinced that a

You know, it just disturbs me that -- and how

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

We're not, you know, this

Just to make note, if I'm
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1

correct, I know it was not only just to address the needs of

2

the merchants who are requesting this, I'm assuming this is for

3

all members of the public, people who come through with the

4

bike tours.

5

restroom that we can go to.

6

expressed concerns that a lot of people on bike tours and just

7

visiting Makawao are using their facilities, and that I believe

8

was also part of the rationale for getting a portable restroom

9

and, you know, not only the intent just to serve the community.

10
11

I've been hearing concerns about is there a
Some of the merchants have

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And I can appreciate your

comments, Mr. Chair.

12

CHAIR MOLINA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Sure.
But if you look at businesses

14

in general throughout this County and throughout the state or

15

the nation, you know I've just been to Seattle.

16

public restroom facilities in the business areas.

17

business who wants the patrons there to be able to take the

18

time to shop tends to provide certain amenities to promote the

19

patrons to stay within their business for potential sales.

20

It's to their benefit.

21

business association would consider doing it that way.

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

You rarely see
Normally a

And I would hope that maybe the

My understanding also to this is that

23

Mr. Levy mentioned that there are several merchants interested,

24

but at this point as far as getting merchants to commit to

25

paying for the rental of this facility, has not been proceeding
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had

hop~a it would be.

1

as well as, you know, he

2

maybe recommend if this concern of Mr. Levy's is very

3

important, and I guess some of the other merchants, maybe

4

letters referred to the Councilor Public Works Committee here

5

of the specific people who are intent on paying for these

6

portables.

7

to agree, I don't believe we have the money, as Mr. Goode said,

8

in the budget for the County to be paying for the rental of

9

these portable toilets, and of course the Department of Health

10
11

issues.

I would also

I think that's a very important thing.

And I have

Mr. Kane -- I'm sorry, Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yes, thank you.

As far as

12

the Department of Health business goes, the rental of portable

13

toilets happens allover the County, and there are permanent

14

temporary toilets at different parks facilities.

15

think the Department of Health is any concern of ours.

16

between the vendor who provides the Portapotties and the

17

Department of Health, so that would not be part of the County's

18

purview or responsibility.

19

do this with -- it sounds like we can't do it easily_

20

So I don't
It's

I think that, you know, if we can't

This request came in sometime like almost a year

21

ago, August 3rd.

And I would ask if the Makawao people could

22

be, could wait for a few more months, maybe it's five, until

23

June 1st, July 1st when the new budget comes in so that we can

24

appropriately plan to meet this need.

25

perhaps I can talk to my colleague from Lanai and point out, I

And in the meantime
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1

don't think he needs pointing out, but small towns in Hawaii

2

are unique, and part of that unique characteristic is we don't

3

have a JC Penny that has multi-bathrooms in it to draw people

4

in.

5

need to look at providing some public restroom facilities in

6

small towns.

7

know, Wailuku.

8

have the facilities or the shopping centers.

9

part of the preservation of the small town we need to look at

And, you know, to keep it small and homey.

So maybe we do

Just like Lahaina, and is also requesting, you
Kahului has some of those bigger stores that
So I think in

10

some of these public facilities that you might not put into

11

heavy commercial areas, such as Kahului or one of the shopping

12

centers.

13

CHAIR MOLINA:

So noted.

Since we're on the topic

14

of a permanent structure, I've asked Mr. Goode to maybe

l5

elaborate on what we're looking at long-term cost for a

16

permanent structure with a kiosk.

17

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chairman, I apologize, a

18

permanent structure is not on the agenda for today's

19

discussion, so I would ask that you reconsider that discussion

20

or line of questioning.

21

CHAIR MOLINA:

22

Carroll followed by Member Tavares.

23

Okay.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Excuse me, I'm sorry.

Member

Yes, actually, Charmaine

24

said most of what I was going to say, that ordinarily I believe

25

businesses should, you know, supply the things that will bring
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1

their people inside.

2

especially Makawao.

3

to put the type of facility inside their businesses or

4

elsewhere that are necessary just to keep the town clean.

5

I think that we really need to look at it.

6

that we can put it in our budget for next year to try to give

7

them some relief up there.

8
9

But our small towns are unique, and
That it would be very difficult for them

CHAIR MOLINA:

And

And I would hope

Thank you.
Thank you, Mr. Carroll.

Okay, Member

Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

10

Mr. Chair, I was going to

11

suggest that we refer this item to the Budget Committee -- Mr.

12

Hokama is wincing over there

13

something so at least we can keep track of it during the budget

14

session somehow.

Now he's nodding, I'm so happy.

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

17

but, you know, that would be

Mr. Hokama?
Mr. Chairman, I would have no

objections to that request for referral.

18

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay, thank you.

All right.

In the

19

interest of keeping with our stated agenda, we will save this

20

discussion on a permanent structure for Makawao bathroom and

21

kiosk.

22

could maybe circulate your information to us in writing, if

23

that is okay with the body, with regards to how much a

24

structure would cost and how long, so we can maybe get a jump

25

start on it for Members' informational purposes.

And if maybe, Mr. Goode, if maybe down the road if you

Mr. Kawano?
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COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO:

1

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

You

2

know, I had a creepy feeling when they said "portable" in that

3

town.

4

would never allow one portable in our town, and I don't know

5

why, I don't know, I just had a creepy feeling, Chairman.

6

just wanted to share that.

7

Ms. Tavares" the kind, that we send it to the Budget

8

Committee.

9

portables, that instead of good it can be something that would

I just was thinking about back home in Kaunakakai.

We

I

And I would go along with

Because, you know, I seen too many actions in

10

look horrible and would stink the town, and all of that.

11

just feel it doesn't match.

12

just feel, I don't care where you put it, it's not going to

13

match.

14

saying as far as sending it to Budget.

15
16
17

And I

Makawao town is a nice town and I

And I would go along with what the Council woman is

CHAIR MOLINA:
or discussion?

Thank you.

Okay, thank you.

Any other questions

Mr. Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Mr. Chairman, what I would

18

suggest, and if you ask for a motion I will make it, but I

19

would recommend that you send an item to the Budget Committee

20

for consideration of restroom facilities for Makawao town, and

21

that you file this item in your committee.

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

25

Okay, thank you, so noted.
Second.

All right.

The motion on the floor

is to refer this item to the Budget Committee for consideration
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1

fora permanent -- are you talking about a permanent

2

structure?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

3

4

That's the sense I get from

the members, Mr. Chairman.

5

CHAIR MOLINA:

For a permanent structure, permanent

6

bathroom structure and kiosk for Makawao town, if that is the

7

purview of the members here, kiosk and bathroom, permanent

8

bathroom structure.

9

Budget Committee and then file this item, and the motion is

The motion is to refer this item to the

10

being made by Mr. Hokama and seconded by Mr. Kane.

11

discussion?

12

Any

Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chairman, thank you.

I

13

think what was brought up by Ms. Tavares is really important

14

for us on a bigger scale, not only for Makawao town, but now

15

we're looking at I think we have a lot of unique situations

16

with small towns throughout the County.

17

Main Street Association, as an example, represents Paia,

18

represents Wailuku, Kaunakakai, you know, Makawao.

19

know if it's going to be limited to just Makawao.

20

there's an obvious need in all of these small towns.

21

represent a uniqueness of small town, whatever you want to call

22

it, character and what.

23

I mean, you know, the

So I don't
And I think
They all

So I don't know if it's appropriate to amend this to

24

include that we need to discuss this, if this County which has

25

shown I think in the past, or this Council has shown that there
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1

is a support for a small town retention.

That we need to put

2

this in a bigger picture and say well, let's look at it from

3

the standpoint of the four recognized small towns, and if

4

there's anybody else that wants to jump on board, that's

5

something that they need to come forward as an organization and

6

say, you know what, our small town, whether it be Hana or Lanai

7

City.

8

keep it at Makawao and then later on it could be always amended

9

at the Budget discussion, maybe that would be more

So within the discussion I don't know if we want to just

10

appropriate.

11

I think it's a bigger picture.

12

countywide standpoint and not just one town, because we know

13

that the other towns that I've mentioned earlier have the same

14

issues.

15

But I just wanted to, for the record, state that

CHAIR MOLINA:

We need to look at it from a

Okay, out of consideration for

16

today's agenda, I say we keep the motion that's currently on

17

the floor, but do consider it at our next Budget meeting, that

18

we include other small towns, since historic small towns play

19

such a big part in our economy here in Maui County.

20

discussion on this matter?

Okay.

21

COUNCTLMEMBER TAVARES:

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

24
25

Mr. Chairman.

Yes, Member Tavares.
Howard, is there going to be

any problem with the way this motion is worded?
MR. FUKUSHIMA:

Any other

To refer it to --
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Maybe we can --

1

CHAIR MOLINA:

2

COUNCI LMEMBER TAVARES:

3

refer the item.
To the Budget Committee.

4

MR. FUKUSHIMA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

6

And then file the item.

So should we refer the subject matter and refer the item?
MR. FUKUSHIMA:

7

8

Because I think it said to

Refer the subject matter, yeah,

right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

9

Okay. Refer the subject

10

matter to the Budget Committee and file the item in this

11

committee.
CHAIR MOLINA:

12

With the understanding of it being a

13

permanent structure, both kiosk and bathroom.

14

questions or concerns?

15

"aye.

All those in favor of this motion say

II

16

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

17

COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

CHAIR MOLINA:

20

VOTE:

Okay, any other

AYES:

Aye.
Aye.
Aye.

All those opposed?

Council members Carroll, Hokama, Kawano and

21

Tavares, Vice-Chair Kane and Chair Molina.

22

CHAIR MOLINA:

23

NOES:

24

ABSTAIN:

None.

25

EXCUSED:

Councilmember Arakawa.

All those opposed?

None.
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1

MOTION CARRIED.

2

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay, thank you very much.

3

motion has passed unanimously.

4

here, are there any announcements from the Members?

The

And as we are about to adjourn

5

Mr. Hokama.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Thank you, Chairman.

I'd

7

just like to wish all the ladies of our beautiful County a

8

Happy Valentine's Day.
CHAIR MOLINA:

9

Okay. Mr. Carroll?

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

.10

I also -- I've never taken

11

advantage of the announcements, and I would like to tell my

12

wife Happy Valentine's Day, and my children and grandchildren,

13

and all the people of Hawaii.

14

Valentine's Day.

I hope they have a wonderful

15

CHAIR MOLINA:

16

Ms. Tavares?

17

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

18

21

And in all fairness, I'd

like to wish all the men a Happy Valentine's Day.

19
20

Thank you, Mr. Carroll.

CHAIR MOLINA:
it.

Hey, right on.

You got it, you got

Mr. Kawano?
COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO:

Thank you.

And to Molokai,

22

all the people, all the women's there -- not the men, the

23

women's, Happy Valentine's Day.

24

CHAIR MOLINA:

And Mr. Kane?

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Ditto.
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1

CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay I

I'd like to wish my wife a very

2

Happy Valentine's Day.

3

the only one, I do want you to know.

4

announcement.

5

I do want to mention to the public and the Members here that

6

this Council is taking this issue very, very seriously.

7

of Members who have been in informal meetings addressing the

8

issues, such as Council members Tavares and Kane who have

9

looked at alternative transportation means.

10
11

She is the best wife I've ever had and
Just a quick

With all the concerns being made about traffic,

I know

You should be

commended.
Councilmember Johnson has taken a special interest

12

in the West Maui traffic situation.

13

have been in some meetings with the DOT officials and

14

landowners with regards to the Hana and Haleakala Highway

15

situations and Paia bypass, and I know Mr. Kawano and

16

Mr. Nishiki have made their feelings known to the public about

17

the traffic situation.

18

Myself and Mr. Carroll

And I'd also like to mention the Mayor, the

19

administration has put together a transportation action

20

committee in which all I guess important parties are putting

21

their heads together to come up with both short-term and

22

long-term solutions to this problem.

.23

And thi.s committee at the

moment is looking into having a committee meeting on March 14th

24

devoted specifically to traffic concerns, and we will try and

25

get in touch with as much people out there to come and share
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1

their thoughts on how we can address these needs.

2

February 2nd article in the Honolulu Advertiser mentioned that

3

the cars on Maui, there's been a 20 percent jump I believe in

4

the number of cars on the road, and this is a very serious

5

concern.

6

is doing everything it can to address this situation.

7

A recent

And I just want the public to know that this Council

And I also want to commend Mr. Hokama, who helped me

8

refer to the Committee of the Whole on how the County can help

9

our motorists deal with the situation as far as getting out on

10

the roads to work.

If communication to them can be expedited

11

to them in a faster manner with regards to minor disasters,

12

such as fires and traffic accidents, we've been having a rash

13

of them I believe in the month of January.

14

use this moment to commend all members of this Council and the

15

administration and everyone out there who's currently involved

16

with the traffic situation.

17

out and give their thoughts on our March 14th meeting.

So I just wanted to

And I encourage the public to come

18

And with that, if there are no other announcements,

19

I'd like to officially adjourn this meeting and wish everybody

20

a Happy Valentine's Day.

21
22
23
24
25

Adjourn:

11:40 a.m.
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